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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

M %R E

(In' HK$'000) (LB F o B ESr) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
OPERATING RESULTS 2EMNR
Revenue U 28 ‘ 174,831 191,580 124642 317,515 443,398
Profit for the year attributable to A ZARH#A AE(L
owners of the Company F N34 7 47,738 254,624 163,603 225867 518,309
Earnings per share - Basic TR M — EAR |
HK cents Al 1.8 95 6.1 8.4 19.3
FINANCIAL POSITION RN
Total assets BEHE 3,238,239 2,903,628 2,713,372 2,640,888 2,380,129
Net assets EEFE 2,633,091 2,642,866 2,491,167 2,370,912 2,188,579
Total liabilities BEEE 605,148 260,762 222,205 269,976 191,550
SEGMENT INFORMATION o EE R .
- SEGMENT REVENUE - DHKE
Broking & 9,564 8,136 11,307 9,359 15,186
Financing B 7% 94,614 73,146 77,307 64,539 49,326
Corporate finance TERE 3,714 1,276 16 15,054 38
Assets management EEER 2,075 2,242 2,565 4,293 2,726
Property investment BHERE 64,569 106,496 25912 26,764 28,848
Precious metal trading ERBEE 295 293 7,535 | 197,506 347,274
Investment holding BRI - - - - -
- SEGMENT RESULTS - DEEAE
Broking e 76 (1,609) 1,162 (328) 3,870
Financing 8% 76,331 64,706 68,371 55,317 42937
Corporate finance TEBE 3,669 1,224 7 11,421 2Nl
Assets management BEES 383 634 1,552 3,214 1,739
Property investment FHERE 58,656 100,347 20,562 21,896 23,118
Precious metal trading E¢BEE (640) (686) (703) (930) (902)
Investment holding "E R - 5 i+ T i

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4EMAMWA )



Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Upbest Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present to
you the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31t March, 2020.

Financial and Business Review

During the financial year 2020, the Group recorded a profit of
approximately HK$46.4 million, which was approximately 82.3%
lower than the HK$262.5 million recorded in the preceding year. The
decrease in profit recorded mainly due to the net decrease in fair
value amounted to approximately HK$44.0 million (2019: net increase
in fair value approximately HK$175.0 million) recognised by the
investment properties during the financial year. Such reflects the
market environment amid the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19”)
pandemic outbreak in the jurisdictions where the investment properties
located. Without considering the effect of the change in net fair value
of our investment properties, the Group recorded profit for the year
of approximately HK$90.4 million during the year, which represented
a slight increase of approximately 3.3% when compared with
approximately HK$87.5 million recorded last year.

Despite facing the volatile market environment during the year, the
corporate finance segment of our Group has brought additional income
from placing and underwriting activities. Such activities have provided
synergy and benefited other business segments of our Group such as
the broking and financing segment.

Our Group’s financing segment recorded significant gains in
both revenue and segment results during the year, accounted for
approximately HK$94.6 million and approximately HK$76.3 million
respectively. Our financing segment is able to generate reliable income
to the Group by utilising our Group rich cash reserves.

Market Review
The COVID-2019 pandemic outbreak in the first quarter of 2020 leaded

to drastic reduction in spending (by both domestic consumers and .

tourists) than was ever experienced during the social movement in
2019. Investment activities, apart from projects in -progress, were
suspended as enterprises awaited for clear indications of future market
trend amid the economic recession. Hong Kong’s trading sector
has been severely hit by the significant fall-in external demand and
expected to be continually affected by US-China trade tensions.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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According to the Census and Statistics Department published advance
gross domestic production (“GDP”) estimates for the first quarter on
4" May 2020, real GDP was downed by 8.9% year on year, the largest
decline since records began in 1974. The large drop was caused by
lockdown measures imposed in order to control the local outbreak of the
COVID-19.

Even though Hong Kong has a low infection rate combared with other
jurisdictions, the decline in GDP already recorded over the past few
months and the impact on the global economy of lockdown measures
would further hinder the recovery in economic activity in Hong Kong.

The economic recession as well as uncertain global economic outlook
had greatly affected investors’ appetite and market performance. The
Hang Seng index (“HSI”) shifted to the lowest point of 21,696 from the
highest point of 30,157 last year. As at the year ended 31t March, 2020,
the HSI was at the point of 23,175, a decrease of 21.6% comparing with
that on 1%t April, 2019. For the period from April 2019 to March 2020, the
average déily turnover amounted to approximately HK$279.3 billion, an
approximately 0.5% increase compared with approximately HK$277.9
billion for the same period last year.

Broking

The corporate finance segment has contributed income to our Group
during the year by provision of various corporate finance services such
as placing and underwritiné services. Such activities have brought
with income growth to corporate finance segment and benefited other
segments such as our broking and financing segment.

Save as the above, the revenue of broking segment was approximately
HK9.6 million, which increased by approximately HK$1.5 million
comparing with the preceding year of approximately HK$8.1 million,
an approximately 18.5% increase during the year and segment results
has recorded a profit of approximately HK$76,000 during the year, as
compared with the loss of approximately HK$1.6 million recorded last
year.

Financing

The segment revenue of financing segment was approximately HK$94.6
million, represented an increase of approximately HK$21.5 million or
29.4% compared with the preceding year and the éegment results
during the year amounted to HK$76.3 million which was approximately
17.9% higher than the previous year.

During the year, there was an increasing demand in financing activities
due to the volatile market environment. Our Group has maintained a
cautious approach in extending loans to our current clients as well as
offering attractive money lending package to our new customers.
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Corporate Finance and Asset Management

During the financial year 2020, the corporate finance segment
contributed revenue and segment results for approximately HK$3.7
million and approximately HK$3.7 million respectively. Such contribution
mainly due to the increase in commission income earned from corporate
finance services such as placing and underwriting of new shares during
the year.

For the asset management segment, the revenue and results in the
current year were approximately HK$2.1 million and HK$0.4 million
respectively, which were aligned with the market environment.

Precious Metal Trading
During the current financial year, the segment loss was approximately
HK$0.6 million which was similar to the preceding financial year.

Properties Investment
Facing the COVID-19 outbreak in the first quarter of 2020,
business were under tremendous pressure in their operation. In

retail

consideration of the market environment factors, our Group has offered
rental concession to tenants. Our Directors were of the view that such
implementation aimed to release financial burden of tenants during the
difficult time in order to achieve a long term-win-win outcome between
the tenants and our Group.

During the current financial year, the properties investment segment
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$64.6 million, which was
reduced by approximately HK$41.9 million. Such drop was mainly due
to the decrease of income from provision of properties management
services during the year. The segment results was approximately
HK$58.7 million which represented a decrease by approximately
HK$41.6 million compared with the preceding year's approximately
HK$100.3 million.

As at 31% March, 2020, the fair value of our investment properties
accounted for approximately HK$1,642.0 million, with the net fair
value decrease of approximately HK$44.0 million recorded during the

year. Nevertheless, when considering the accumulated increment in .

the net fair value changes over the past three years, from HK$1,396.0
million as at 31t March, 2017 to HK$1,642.0 million as at 31t March,
2020, still,
appreciation for approximately HK$246.0 million.

our Group’s investment properties have considerable
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Administration Performance

The administrative and other operating expenses for the current
financial year amounted to approximately HK$27.1 million, which
represented an increase of HK$0.3 million comparing with last year. The
administrative expenses to revenue ratio of approximately 15.5% was
higher than that in 2019 with approximately 14.0%.

Prospects

We expect the ecohomy would recover slowly from the second half
of 2020, still, the Hong Kong visitors arrival would not restore to the
previous years until the stability of Hong Kong political environment.
Political instability has negatively affected Hong Kong's reputation and
would further ruin overseas investment in the long term. Nevertheless,
potential rivals such as Shanghai, Shenzhen and Singapore would not
be able to fulfil the same role as Hong Kong. Hong Kong will still stand
as one of the world’s most important international financial centres and
a nexus between China and the global economy. Indeed, with tensions
mounting between the US and China, the importance of Hong Kong as.a
connectiné point between China and the rest of the world is more likely
to grow rather than diminish.

Facing such complicated investment environment, our Group will
continue to work on prudence amid challenges and maintain a cautious
approach to regularly review and adjust our business strategies in
due occasion. We strive to look for other investment opportunities to
contribute a long term economic benefit to our shareholders.

Appreciation v

The Board would like to thank the management of the Group and all
staff for their hard work and dedication, as well as shareholders of the
Company, the Group’é business partners and associates, bankers and
auditors for their supports to the Group.

On_ behalf of the Board

IP Man Tin, David
Chairman and
Non-executive Director

Hong Kong, 24" June, 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31% March, 2020, the Group had bank balance and cash of
approximately HK$480.2 million (2019: HK$371.1 million) of which
approximately HK$10.0 million (2019: HK$10.0 million) were pledged
to bank for facilities granted to the Group. The Company has given
guarantees to the extent of HK$452.0 million (2019: HK$452.0 million)
to secure the facilities granted to subsidiaries. As at 31t March, 2020
the Group had available aggregate banking facilities of approximately
HK$468.0 million (2019: HK$468.0 million) of which HK$186.8 million
(2019: HK$468.0 million) was not utilised.

As at 31t March, 2020,
approximately HK$283.7 million from approximately HK$2.8 million as at
31 March, 2019.

the Group’s borrowings increased to

Gearing Ratio

As at 31t March, 2020, the amount of total borrowings was
approximately HK$283.7 million (2019: HK$2.8 million). The gearing
being equal to approximately 10.8% (2019: 0.1%) of the net assets of
approximately HK$2,633.1 million (2019: HK$2,642.9 million).

Capital Structure
There was no significant change in the Group’s capital structure for the
year ended 31t March, 2020.

As at 31t March, 2020, the total equity attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$2,634.3 million (2019:
HK$2,642.7 million). The Group’s consolidated net assets per share as
at the reporting date was HK$0.99 (2019: HK$0.99).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group operates in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC and the majority
of transactions are denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), United
State dollars ("US$") and Macau Pataca. Foreign exchange risk arises

from commercial transactions, recognized assets and liabilities, which .

are denominated in a currency that is not the functional currency of the
Group and the Company.

During the year, the Group mainly uses Hong Kong dollars,
Macau Pataca and United States dollars to carry out its business
transactions. The Board considers the foreign currency exposure is
insignificant. - '
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E E & W R 2 M

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31t March, 2020, the Group has pledged certain of its investment
properties with fair value of approximately HK$1,434.0 million (2019:
HK$1,462.0 million) and pledged bank deposits of HK$10.0 million
(2019: HK$10.0 million) to a bank to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31% March, 2020, the Group has provided guarantee to certain
financial institutions as follow:

SEEEWRT

RZE-_ZTFZA=Z+—B AEERAEY
143408 BT (ZE—NF 146208 88
T)HMETHREDERI00BES T ZEEMR
TEF(ZZ-NEFE 100EBT) CEEH
WRBETFASEZ —MRTHE -

HAEE

N-E-TEZAZ+—B  AEERREER
FHBRENT -

‘ 2020 2019
(In HK$'000) (LBEETFTRER) g = F 3 S8
The guarantees given by the Company andits ~ ARAIREMBERARNARBLE=H 3

subsidiaries to financial institutions in respect BRTYTUBHEBEERIDEGEER

of facilities to independent third parties 3,000 3,000
The guarantees given by the Company to RRAREBEK B AR TS5 HE

financial institutions in respect of facilities ERIAREEE

granted to subsidiaries 452,000 452,000
At the end of-the reporting period, the directors do not consider it is  RI{HEAK “%T\E@j%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁé%l
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under any of the ~ FER{& °

guarantees.

Of the above guarantees, the amount utilised by the subsidiaries at 31%
March, 2020 is HK$281.2 million (2019: HK$NIil).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect of
these guarantees as its fair value cannot be reliably measured and its
transaction price was HK$Nil (2019: HK$NIil).

FiER ERZE_ZEF=-A=1+"HENE
NEMERZEE A28 2AEET (ZE—NE:
AT - '

ARUGEERZ AR BEREAREAERAR S
BEAZTAEL(ZZ—NF: THT)  BAR
AR A AR EREREMETRA -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31t March, 2020, the Group had 39 staff including those staff
of Macau (2019: 43). For the year ended 31 March, 2020, the staff
costs of the Group amounted to approximately HK$15.3 million (2019:
HK$15.5 million), 8.8% and 8.1% of the Group’s revenue in financial
year 2020 and 2019 respectively.

The Group continues to- maintain and upgrade the capabilities of its
workforce by providing them with adequate and regular training in order
to enhance their technical skills and update their industry knowledge
with regards to laws and regulations.

The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on industry
practices, market remuneration and individual’s performance and
experie'nce. On top of regular remuneration, discretionary bonus may be
granted to eligible staff by reference to the Group’s performance as well
as individual’s performance.

SHARE OPTION
The Company does not a have share option scheme.

CREDIT CONTROL

The Group has been practicing tight credit control policy. A credit
committee composed of two executive Directors and other members
is responsible for overseeing the granting of credit facilities. Daily
operation of money lending will be guided by the stringent procedures
as prescribed by the internal control manual.

COMPLIANCE AND RISK STEERING COMMITTEE AND
STRATEGY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Group has established a Compliance and Risk Steering Committee
and a Strategy Management Committee which aims to maintain a good
corporate governance environment for the Group. The Board believed
that this will help to enhance the Group’s expanding process in the
future.

PROPOSED DIVIDEND

Subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”), the Board has
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK1.0 cent per
ordinary share (2019: HK2.0 cents per ordinary share) in respect of the
year ended 31t March, 2020 to all shareholders of the Company whose
names: appear on the register of members of the Company on Fr|o|ay,
11" September, 2020.If approved, the payment of the final dividend will
be made on or about Friday, 25" September, 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E E & W R 2 M

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM will .be convened and held on Friday, 28" August, 2020.
Notice of the AGM will be published on the websites of the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
and sent to the shareholders of the Company fogether with the
Company’s 2020 Annual Report in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR THE AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
24" August, 2020 to Friday, 28" August, 2020, both days inclusive,
during which period no share transfers can be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 21t August, 2020.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR FINAL DIVIDEND
The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 9" September, 2020 to Friday, 11" September, 2020,
both dates inclusive, during which period no share transfers can
be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Standard Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 8"
September, 2020.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

E E R B

Non-Executive Director and Chairman

Mr. IP Man Tin, David (“Mr. Ip”), aged 74, is the chairman and
non-executive Director of the Company. He holds a Bachelor of Arts
Degree and Master’'s Degree in Public Administration. Mr. Ip is a
Chartered Marketer and a Certified Management Consultant trained in
ISO20700:2017. He has more than 25 years of public administration
and more than 15 years of public company management experience
in Hong Kong and Britain. He has extensive consultancy experience
across industry sectors. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ip does not
hold directorship in any other listed public companies in Hong Kong or
overseas during the past three years and he does not hold any other
position with the Company and other members of the Group.

Non-Executive Director

Dr. SZE Ping Fat (“Dr. Sze”), aged 62, is a non-executive Director of
the Corhpany. Dr. Sze is an Australian legal practitioner having obtained
the Doctorate in Juridical Science from Deakin Law School in Melbourne
as well as Master’s degrees in law from Trinity College Dublin, the
University of Leuven and the University of Sydney. He was appointed a
Justice -of the Peace in and for New South Wales in 1996 and elected a
Member of the National Institute of Accountants (with a Master’s degree
in Professional Accounting from the University of Southern Queensland)
in-1997, a Visiting Fellow of Clare Hall in the University of Cambridge
in 2002, a Fellow of the Malaysian Institute of Arbitrators in 2003, a
Member of the Society of Trust and Estate Practitioners and a Fellow
of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators in 2008, a Full Fellow of the
Society for Advanced Legal Studies in the University of London in 2009,
a Special Member of the International Association of Prosecutors (The
United Nations) in 2012 and a Member of the Magistrates’ Association
of Great Britain in 2015.

Dr. Sze specializes in criminal and commercial matters. Since 2007,
he has been a Visiting Professor of the IMO International Maritime Law
Institute (The United Nations). He has authored a treatise on carrier’s
liability, several monographs for The International Encyclopedia of
Laws, and more than 60 articles in the areas of public law, business
law and international trade law. He has been commissioned by the

University of Oxford to produce a biography of the late Sir Denys .

Roberts, a former Chief Justice of Hong Kong. In 2005 and 2008, he
served as a PhD thesis examiner at Macquarie Law School in Sydney.
Save as disclosed above, Dr. Sze does not hold directorship in any
other listed public companies in Hong Kong or overseas during the past
three years and he does not hold any other position with the Company
and other members of the Group.
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Executive Directors

Ms. CHENG Wai Ling, Annie (“Ms. Cheng”), aged 41, is an executive
Director, Chief Executive Officer, member of the Remuneration
Committee and member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.
She is responsible for overseeing the daily operations of the Company.
Ms. Cheng received her bachelor’s degree in Business Administration
(Accounting and Finance) from the University of Hong Kong and is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Prior to
joining the Company, she had served with an international audit firm.
Save as disclosed above, Ms. Cheng does not hold directorship in
any listed public companies in Hong Kong or overseas during the past
three years. Ms. Cheng is the sister of Mr. Cheng Wai Lun, Andrew,
an executive Director of the Company. She also holds directorships in
various subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew (“Mr. Cheng”), aged 47, is an executive
Director of the Company. He obtained his bachelor's degree from the
California bState University, USA. He has over 20 years' experience
in securities, corporate finance and direct investment. He is also an
executive director of UBA Investments Limited (Stock Code: 0768).
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Cheng does not hold di'rectorship in any
listed public companies in Hong Kong or overseas during the past
three years. He also holds directorships in various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Cheng is the brother of Ms. Cheng Wai Ling, Annie, an
executive Director of the Company.

Mr. MOK Kwai Hang (“Mr. Mok”), aged 56, is an executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Mok is responsible for overseeing the daily
operation of the Company's property investment segment. Mr. Mok
received his Bachelor's Degree in Quantity Surveying from Hong Kong
Polytechnic (currently the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors and the Chartered Institute of Architectural
Technologists. Prior to joining the Company, he had served with Hip
Hing Construction Company Limited as Deputy General Manager
(Commercial) involved in various projects in Hong Kong and Macau
and as associate director in Widnell Limited involved in building and
infrastructure projects in Hong Kong. Saved as disclosed above,
Mr. Mok has not held any other directorships in other Hong Kong or
overseas listed public companies in the last three years. He also holds
directorships in various subsidiaries of the Company.

OGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EE R e EHEE & H
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHITES
Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan (‘Mr. Chan”), aged 53, is an independent  BRRZLE ([BRELE]) © 535% AR RRIMEL

non-executive Director, chairman of the Audit Committee, member of the
Remuneration Committee and member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company.

Mr. Chan holds two master degrees in Practising Accounting and
Business Law from Monash University, Australia. Professionally, he is a
fellow of the Hong Kong- Institute of Certified Public Accountants, CPA
Australia, The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
in UK, The Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries, The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors and is an ordinary member of Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute, The Chartered Institute of
Logistics and Transport Hong Kong. He is also admitted to Certified
Membership of The Institute of Certified Management Accountants
of Aust'ralia, and awarded with “Chartered Banker” by the Chartered
Institute of Bankers in Scotland, UK, “Certified Banker” of The Hong
Kong Institute of Bankers, “Chartered Secretary” and “Chartered
Governance Professional” of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in UK.

Currently, he is a standing member and convenor of Hong Kong
members of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
Yunfu City of Guangdong Province, standing member of Guangdong'’s
Association for Promotion of Cooperation between Guangdong, Hong
Kong & Macau, member of China Overseas Friendship Association,
member of Friends of Hong Kong Association, Co-sponsor of Hong
Kong Coalition, secretary general of China Hong Kong and Macau
Boundary Crossing Bus Association, Mr. Chan was also appointed
as member of the Board of Review (Inland Revenue) of HKSAR from
2009-2011. :

Currently, he is the managing director of a transportation company
which is a subsidiary of a listed company. He is also an independent
non-executive director and chairman of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of UBA Investments Limited
(Stock Code: 0768). Other than as disclosed above, Mr. Chan holds no

directorship in other public companies listed on any securities market .

in Hong Kong or overseas now or in the past three years and he does
not hold any other position with the Company and other members of the
Group.
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Mr. POON Kai Tik (“Mr. Poon”), aged 67, is an independent
non-executive .Director, member of the Audit Committee, Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and Chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Poon graduated from the University
of Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree in Arts and a Master's Degree
in Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Having more than 40 years of working experience, Mr. Poon is well
respected across industries, ranging from advertis‘ing, marketing
to public rel‘ations.' He previously served as Head of Corporate
Communications of the Hospital Authority, assistant director of
Corporate and Community Relations of the Housing Authority and
director of Government and Community Engagement of the Link Real
Estate Investment Trust (Stock code: 0823). Save as disclosed above,
Mr. Poon does not hold directorship in any listed public companies in
Hong Kong or overseas during the past three years and he does not
hold any other position with the Company and other members of the
Group.

Mr. HUI Man Ho, Ivan (“Mr. Hui”), aged 41, is an independent
non-executive Director, member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Hui holds
Master degree in Practising Accounting, Master degree in Applied
Finance and a Bachelor degree in Business (Banking & Finance)
from Monash University, Australia. He is also a member of CPA
Australia. Mr. Hui has over 14 years of working experience in auditing,
accounting, financial manégement and corporate finance. He is
currently an independent non-executive director of Prime Intelligence
Solutions Group Limited (Stock Code: 8379) and Elegance Optical
International Heldings Limited (Stock Code: 907). He was also a
non-executive director of Huge China Holdings Limited (now known as
Cocoon Holdings Lim’ited) (Stock Code: 428) during the period from
March to June 2018. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Hui does not hold
directorship in any listed public companies in Hong Kong or overseas
during the past three years and he does not hold any other position with
the Company and other members of the Group.

Company Secretary

Mr. YUEN Shing Him (“Mr. Yuen”), aged 34, is the company secretary
and the authorised representative of the Company. Mr. Yuen obtained a
Bachelor Degree of Business Administration (Honours) in Accountancy
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a'member of the
Hong Kong Institute” of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 9
years of experience in accounting, auditing and corporate finance.

OGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present its report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 315 March, 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in securities broking, futures
broking, securities margin financing, money lending, corporate finance
advisory, assets management precious metal trading and property
investment.

BUSINESS REVIEW.

A fair review of the business and the prospect of the Company and a
discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
and the material factors underlying its results and financial position
are provided in the section “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” from pages 5 to 8 and pages 9 to 12 of this
annual report respectively. These discussion form part of this director’s
report. Description of -the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company can be found throughout this annual report particularly in note
5 and note 7 to the consolidated financial statements. Environmental
policies and performance are discussed in the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” from pages 46 to 62 of this annual report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information by principal businesses and
geographical locations are set out in note 8(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries and associate at 31% March,
2020 are set out in note 35 and note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31¢ March, 2020 are set out
in the consolidated income statement on page 70.

DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share in respect of the year to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 11" September, 2020.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
E =228 &

SHARE CAPITAL [N
Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out in  BEKRARRANz BEEEH NG ST BREN
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements. 5129 o
FINANCIAL SUMMARY MEHE
A summary of the results and of the assets and-liabilities of the Group AT AXREERBERAENBES ZXEREE
for the last five financial years is set out below. This summary does not HEBEZHE - WEEYWELBERESMBERE
form part of the audited consolidated financial statements. ZED o
RESULTS £
During the year ended 31t March,
BE=A=t-HLEE
(In HK$'000) (BB TFTBEN) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Revenue g 174,831 191,589' 124,642 3515 443,398
Profit before taxation R A5 AL ) 62,273 290,588 165,504 234,084 520,223
Income tax expenses FERiA X (15,872) (28,039) (1,921) - (8,234) (2,022)
Profit for the year attributable RERAQT
to owners of the Company HEAEG ‘

FRHF 47,738 254,624 163,603 225,867 518,309

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - EEEEE
As at 31t March,
R=B=+-8
(In HK$'000) (LB FrBEN) 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Total assets BEMAE 3,238,239 2,903,628 2,713,372 2,640,888 2,380,129
Total liabilities BELE (605,148) (260,762) (222,205) (269,976)  (191,550)
Net assets BEFE 2,633,091 2,642,866 2,491,167 2,370,912 2,188,579
RESERVES e
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the HBHEAEERN AEERAQFEEZHBRD
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and  BIEFHRGE AT B R NG E M B REME33 -
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
18 UPBEST GROUP LIMITED ((#EEHA WA W)



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution represent the share
premium, contributed surplus, retained profits and proposed dividend
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The share premium
of the Company is available for paying dividend to shareholders subject
to the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distribution of dividend the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
dividends can be distributed out of the share premium, contributed
surplus, retained profits and proposed dividend of the Company which
in aggregate amounted to approximately HK$351.2 million as at 31%
March, 2020 (2019: HK$371.1 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at 31 March, 2020,
resulting an decrease in net fair value amounting to approximately
HK$44.0 million (2019: net increase in fair value approximately
HK$175.0 million) which has been recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Details of these and other movements during the year in the property,
plant and equipment and investment properties are set out in notes 16
and 17 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

BORROWINGS

Borrowings repayable within one year or on demand are classified as
current liabilities. A repayment analysis of borrowings is set out in note
25 to the consolidated financial statements. No interest was capitalised
by the Group during the year. :

MAJOR CLIENTS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31% March 2020, the Group’s five largest clients
accounted for in aggregate approximately 33% (2019: 24%) of the
Group’s revenue, of which one customer has contributed over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group (2019: no single customer has
contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group).

The Group had no major suppliers due to the nature: of the principal
activities of the Group.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholder of
the Company which to the knowledge of the Directors of the Company
owned more than 5% “of-the Company’s issued share capital have an
interest in the Group’s five largest clients.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Non-executive directors
Mr. IP Man Tin, David (Chairman)
Dr. SZE Ping Fat

Executive directors

Ms. CHENG'Wai Ling, Annie
Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew
Mr. MOK Kwai Hang

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan

Mr. POON Kai Tik

Mr. HUI Man Ho, Ivan

Brief biographical details in respect of the directors are set out in the
“Biography of directors and senior management” from pages 13 to 16 of
this annual report.

In accordance with Articles 116 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Mok Kwai Hang, Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan and
Mr. HUI Man Ho, Ivan shall retire by rotation from office at the AGM and
being eligible, offers themselves for re-election at the AGM.

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive Directors
lasts until his retirement by rotation as required by the Company’s
Articles of Assogiation.

The Company received confirmation of independence in respect
of the year ended 31t March, 2020 from each of the independent
non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Revised Listing
Rules. Up to and as at the date of this report, the Company still
considers the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out in Hong Kong and
accordingly shall comply with material relevant laws and regulations
in Hong Kong. During the year and up to the date of this report,
the Company has complied with all the material relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Article 179 of Articles of Association of the Company provides that
every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by
him/her as a Director or other officer of the Company in defending
any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given
in his/her favour, or in which_he is acquitted. Subject to the Cayman
companies law, if any Director or other person shall become personally
liable for the payment of-any sum primarily due from the Company, the
Board may execute or cause to be executed any mortgage, charge,
or security over or affecting the whole or any part of the assets of the
Company by way of indemnity to secure the Director or person so
becoming liable as aforesaid from any loss in respect of such liability.

In addition, the Company has taken out and maintained directors’
and officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover the certain legal actions brought against its directors
and officers.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an eco-friendly corporation that
tries to reduce the impacts of its operation on the environment, and to
ensure our compliance of prevailing environmental protection laws and
regulations. For details, please refer to the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” contained in this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group continues to ride on 6 key pillars on the six business
streams, being (i) Brokerage (securities and futures), (ii) Financing, (iii)
Corporate Financial Advisory, (iv) Assets ‘Management, (v) Property
Investment and (vi) Precious Metal Trading.

Yet there is no major customers or suppliers involved in the operation
of business, we maintain good working relationship with them to create
value for the Group. The Group also values the knowledge and skills of
its employees, and continues to provide favourable career development
opportunities for its employees.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the contracts described under the section headed “Connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions” below, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31t March, 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 o% Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which are required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein, or which are required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
were as follows:

EENEN R
BRTXBEXSRHERER S| —HREE
ZEKIN  AREHEEANE R B ESETT
VEMREELFAEABRANDALR - MA
AREERETERIARREABEARAYHA
KREXBREEZAN -

ESREBTRABREL AREAHE 2
A2 ABRGRES 2 RS RAR

R-B-EE=F=+—-B ALASEEHE
BARABRARAASTAALEE (T8 85
% RETE EOIEXV) ZRG  HERG RESS
BA T 2 B RAR - BREBS RS
EXVEBETRES BAME AL T R 04
% (BERBEARNEEOIEHERSRY
SR BERMEXRAR)  SARBESR
S I B35 AR ER LT ERR -
HARE LT ARESETEEX SHELFE
ZRTNERAT R

Number of shares
RH%E
Personal
interests Family
(held as interests Percentage
heneficial (interest Corporate Other of issued
Name of Director owner) of spouse) interests interests Total  share capital
EUN 5 FEEL BE{j}
EE3.2 (REEEAA) (BfRER) EEER EfpgE @i RAESM
Ordinary Shares of HKS0.01 each  AATSREEOOIERLZ
in the Company EER
CHENG Wai Ling, Annie (Note 1) k1) e - 1992721496 - 1992721496 74.29%
CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew (Note 1) Bfgfa (Fzt1) ol - 199272149 - 199272149 74.29%
MOK Kwai Hang (Note 2) BREWR) 1,200,000 1,394,190 B s 2,594,190 0.10%
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Note 1: As at 31t March, 2020, CCAA Group Limited (“CCAA”), an associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) of the Company,
was directly interested in 1,992,721,496 shares in, representing
approximately 74.29% of, the issued share capital of the Company.
Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew, Ms. CHENG Wai Ling, Annie and their
family members are the beneficiaries of the trust which assets include
interests in the entire issued share capital of CCAA and accordingly,
they are deemed to be interested in 1,992,721,496 shares and the entire
issued share capital of CCAA under the SFO.

As at 31t March, 2020, Mr. MOK Kwai Hang, an executive Director of the
Company with his spouse together have beneficial interest in 2,594,190
shares of the Company.

Note 2:

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or its
associate a party. to any arrangements to enable the Directors or
executives of the Company (including their spouse and children under
18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition in
shares or debentures of the Company or its associate.

Save as disclosed above, as at 315t March, 2020, none of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company had any interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or which are required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which are required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
At no time during the year was the Company, its ultimate holding
company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or chief executives of the Company or their respective
spouse or children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of,
the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31t March, 2020, the following persons or corporations, interest in
5% or more in the shares and underlying shares of the Company have
been notified to the Company and recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions required to be kept
under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO: ‘

Number of shareholder

Number of shares held

FERRNAQRA 2RO RABERG 2 EH
K%

m =5

RZB-FE=ZA=1—R  TIALZHZER
BEAAREBRD kBN E5%A £ 2Bk
mRARMAGARR  UAREER LS &
BISEXVERSE 336 1R M E LN E B R B AL -

Percentage of
total number of
shares in issued

BRREE st ERREY HEBRTROBEIL
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RAREBREEOIETZ 3

in the Company EBR
CCAA (Note) CCAA (Ktaz) 1,992,721,496 74.29%

Note: ldentical to those disclosed above as “Directors’ and chief executives’
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31t March, 2020, the Directors are not
aware of any other persons who have interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares of equity derivatives or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which would be required to be disclosed to the Company
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO. ;

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION .

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with
reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group. In addition, the Directors’ remuneration is reviewed
by-the Remuneration Committee annually.

REPURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Other than as an agent for clients of the Company or its subsidiaries,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries repurchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year ended
31t March, 2020.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions undertaken by the Group are included in the transactions
set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, certain
details of which are disclosed in compliance with the requirements of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements and have confirmed that the
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions have
been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
indepehdent third parties; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions during the year as set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements and confirmed that these transactions:

(i) were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company;

(i) where applicable, were in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Company;

(iii) had been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

(iv) have not exceeded the caps stated in the relevant announcement.

As disclosed in the joint announcement of the Company and UBA
Investments Limited (“UBA”, together with its subsidiaries as the “UBA
Group”) dated 25" January, 2019, various members of the Group
entered into certain conditional agreements with the UBA Group, which

would constitute continuing connected transactions (the “CCT”) on the .

part of the Group for the years ending 31¢ March, 2020, 2021 and 2022.
The relevant resolutions of the Company approving the CCT have been
passed at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
26" March, 2019.
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CONFIRMATION FOR CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS -

A letter pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules has been issued
to the Board by the auditors of the Company confirming the matters
stated in Rule 14A.56 in respect of the above continuing connected
transactions for management agreement.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts_concefning the management and administration of the
whole or ahy substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

PENSION SCHEME

The Group has operated a pension scheme under the rules and
regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the
“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately in an independently managed
fund. The Group has followed the minimum statutory contribution
requiremehts of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income.
The contributions, amounting HK$455,000 (2019: HK$472,000), are
charged to the consolidated income statement as incurred.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders under the Cdmpany’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association and the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands.

IMPORTANT EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO FINANCIAL YEAR

As a result of the outbreak of COVID-19, the globe has taken numerous
measures including trével and transportation restrictions to prevent the
spread of the epidemic. Such measures have extensively disrupted
most of the normal operation and businesses. While our Group’s
major businesses are mainly located in Hong Kong and Macau, our
businesses would be affected by the global economy and property
market in the mentioned jurisdictions. Save as disclosed, the Directors
are not aware of any significant events affecting the Group subsequent
to the financial year and up to the date of this report. However, given
the unpredictable nature and rapid development relating to COVID-19,
the Group’s operating environment would be increasingly challenged
when the epidemic continues. The Board will continue to assess the
impact of the outbreak of the epidemic on the Group's operation and
financial performance in this regard.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee according to “A
Guide for the Formation of an Audit Committee” published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The primary duties of
the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control system of the Group.

As at 315t March, 2020, the Audit Committee of the Group is comprised
of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. CHAN Chung
Yee, Alan, Mr. POON Kai Tik and Mr. HUl Man Ho, Ivan. Two of them
have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as prescribed by the Listing Rules. The
main duties of the Audit Committee include the review of the relationship
with external auditors of the Company, review of financial information of
the Group and oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system and
internal control procedures.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Listing Rules have been amended by the Stock Exchange by
replacing the Code of Best Practice in Appendix 14 by a new Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”) and adding a new
Appendix 23 on the requirements for a Corporate Governance Report'to
be included in annual reports of Listed Issuers.

Pursuant to code provisions A.4.1 in respect of the service term of
directors, none of the existing non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) is appointed for a specific term.
This constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1 of the Code.
However, all the Directors are subject to the retirement provisions under
article 116 of the Articles of Association of the Company. As such,
the Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions

by Directors by Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix .

10 of the Listing Rules. Upon enquiry by the Company, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

As at+=31t March, 2020, none of the Directors and their associates
had any interests in an entity whose business compétes or is Iik'ely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s business.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the percentage of the
Company’s shares which are in the hands of the public is not less than
25% of the Company'’s total number of issued shares.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the, Corpor'ate Governance Report on pages 29 to 45 of this
Annual Repdrt.

AUDITORS
The financial statements for the year ended 31t March, 2018 was
audited by Li, Tang, Chen & Co.

The financial statements for the year ended 31t March 2019 and 2020
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited shall hold office until the conclusion of the next
annual geﬁeral meeting of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in auditors of the
Company in any of the preceding three years. '

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general rﬁeeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. IP Man Tin, David
Chairman and Non-executive Director

Ho_ng Kong, 24" June, 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board of Directors of the Upbest Group Limited (the “Company”)
(the “Board”) is committed to maintain high standard of corporate
governance practices, which are crucial to the smooth, effective
and transparent operation of the Company and its ability to attract
investment, protect rights of shareholders and stakeholders, and
enhance shareholder value.

Corporate Governance Practices

This report describes the Company’s corporate governance practices
and structures that were in place during the financial year ended 31%
March, 2020, with specific reference to the principles and guidelines
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) issued by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). In developing and
revievvi'ng its corporate governance policies and practices, the
Company has sought to adopt a balanced approach.

Compliance with Corporate Governance Code

The Company complied with the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules throughout year ended 31¢t March, 2020, except for the following:

Code Provision A.4.1

Pursuant to code provisions A.4.1 in respect of the service term of
directors, none of the existing non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) is appointed for a specific term.
This constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1 of the Code.
However, all the Directors are subject to the retirement provisions under
article 116 of the Articles of Association of the Company. As such,
the Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the Code.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix

10 of the Listing Rules as the codes of conduct regarding securities .

transactions by Directors. All Directors have confirmed, following
specific enquiry by the Company, that they fully complied with the
Model Code throughout the year.

The Company has also established written guidelines regarding
securities transaction on no less exacting terms of the Model Code for
senior management and-specific individual who méy have access to
price sensitive information in relation to the securities of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Structure

With the assistance of the Compliance Department, the Board has
designed a proper corporate governance structure. Currently, there
are seven board committees, including Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee, Credit Committee, Executive
Committee, Compliance and Risk Steering Committee and Strategy
Management Committee. Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee perform their distinct roles in accordance
with their respective'terms of reference. Executive Committee assists
the Group to set up business strategy and planning, and Credit
Committee oversees the granting of credit facilities. Compliance
and Risk Steering Committee maintains and promotes the fairness,
efficiency, competitiveness transparency and orderliness of the
Group’s business. Strategy Management Committee aims to review and
formulate the Group’s operations and business activities development.

Board Composition, Function and Practices

As at 31st March, 2020, the Board comprises of the chairman
(non—execﬁtive Director), one non-executive Director, three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. Mr. IP Man
Tin, David acts as chairman (“Chairman”) and non-executive Director of
the Board. Dr. SZE Ping Fat is a non-executive Director. Other executive
Directors are Ms. CHENG Wai Ling, Annie, Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew
and Mr. MOK Kwai Hang. There are three independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan, Mr. POON Kai Tik and Mr. HUI
Man Ho. Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan and Mr. HUI Man Ho, Ivan have
appropriate professional accounting experience and expertise. All
Directors are subject to election by shareholders at the first General
Meeting after their appointment and are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and eligible for re-election in
accordance with the Company’s Articles and Association.

All Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of expertise,
and have exhibited high standard of personal and professional ethics
and integrity. The biographical details of each Director and senior
management are disclosed in pages 13 to 16 of this Annual Report.

Each independent non-executive Director has pursuant to the rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, confirmed that he is independent of the Company
and the Company also considers that they are independent.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material relationship) among members of the Board except that
Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew is the brother of Ms. CHENG Wai Ling,
Annie.
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The Board, headed by the Chairman, is responsible for formulation
and approval of the Group’s development and business strategies and
policies, approval of annual budgets and business plans, overseeing
the Group’s compliance with statutory and regulatory obligations,
scrutinising the performance of the Group in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, financial reporting and ensuring
proper internal control, risk_ management have been implemented,
recommendation of dividend, and supervision of management in
accordance with the rules governing the meeting of the Board, articles
of association and rules governing the meeting of shareholders.

The executive Directors are responsible for day-to-day management
of the Company’s operations. They conduct regular meetings with the
senior management of the Company and its subsidiaries and associate,
at which operational issues and financial performance are evaluated.

Regular Board meetings are held no less than four times a year. Apart
from the regular Board meetings, the Chairman shall hold meetings
with the non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) without the presence of executive Directors at least once
every year.

In-respect of regular Board meetings, an agenda and accompanying
board papers are sent in full to all Directors in a timely manner. and
at least three days before the intended date of a Board or board
committee meeting. Adequate information related to the issues are
also supplied for the Board and its committee to make decisions which
is for the best interests of the Group. Notice of at least fourteen days
are given to all Directors and all Directors have an opportunity to
attend. The Directors who cannot attend in person might through other
electronic means of communications to participate. Senior management
executives may, from time to time, be invited to attend the Board
meeting for making presentation and/or answering any queries that may
be raised by the Board.

The non-executive Directors would seek guidance and direction from
the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) and executive Directors

on the future business direction and strategic plans in order to gain .

a comprehensive understanding of the business of the Company to
facilitate their exercise of independent judgment. The non-executive
Directors also reviewed the financial information and operational
performance of the Group on a regular basis.
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Board Diversity Policy

the Board adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) with a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development of the Company. The Company views the increasing board
diversity as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its
strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In determining
the composition of the Board, a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational backgfound, ethnicity,
professional experiehce, skills, knowledge and length of service are
taken into account in respect of the diversity of the Board. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy and candidates will be
selected based on objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity of the Board. Final decisions to be made by the Board will
be based on each candidate’s attributes and contributions to be made
to the Board.

The Nomination Committee has responsibilities to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
reoommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships and on relevant matters relating to the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive officer, taking
into account the Company’s corporate strategy and the skills mix,
knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future.

The Nomination Committee will also review the Board diversity policy,
as appropriate and review the measurable objectives that the Board has
set for implementing the Board diversity policy, and the progress on
achieving the objectives.

The following tables further illustrate the diversity of the Board members
as at 31t March, 2020:
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Gender Age Group Professional Experience
15 Egap ExfE
Business  Accounting Law and Property

Male  Female 40to60 60orabove Management and Finance  Litigation Development
Name of Directors EEHE Bt it 40EE60R  60EIUL ERER EHREE  AEEE NEER
Mr.IPMan Tin, David (Chaimman) ~ EBX%4(28) / / /
Dr. SZE Ping Fat BREET / : / / /
Ms. CHENG Wai Ling, Annie PERME / / / / /
Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew IRk / / / /
Mr. MOK Kwai Hang EEERE / / /o /
Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan RRELE / / / /
Mr. POON Kai Tik AREEE / v v
Mr. HUI Man Ho, lvan kLA / / /
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Dividend Policy

The Company may declare and distribute dividend to the shareholders,
provided that the Group records a profit after tax and that the
declaration and distribution of dividend does not affect the normal
operations of the Group.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount the Board shall take into account, inter alia:

the general financial condition of the Group:
- capital and debt level of the Group;

- future cash requirements and availability for business operations,
business strategies and future development needs;

- the general market conditions;

- any restrictions on payment of dividend that may be imposed by
the Group’s lenders; and

- any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
The payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to any

restrictions under the Company Law of the Cayman Islands and Articles
of Association of the Company.
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Proceedings of the Board and Respective Board Committees
Meetings

The Company Secretary will assist the chairman of the Board and the
respective board committees in setting agenda for meetings, and each
Director is given an opportunity to include any matters to be transacted
in the agenda. Where any Director is considered-to be having a conflict
of interest in any transactions, the Director concerned will not be
counted in the quorum of the relevant meeting. ‘

Minutes of meetings of the Board and the respective board committees
are recorded in details. All draft minutes are circulated to all those
present at the meetings for comment before submission to the chairman
of the meetings for approval.

During the financial year ended 31t March, 2020, the Board held
4 Board meetings. Due notice and Board papers were given to all
Directors prior to the meeting in accordance with the Company’s articles
of association and the CG Code. Each individual member of the Board
and the réspective Board committee at the Board and the respective
board committee meeting(s) held during the year and attendance of the
individual Directors are as follows:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings held

LERR/ BHEERY
Audit ~ Remuneration Nomination Annual

Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting

gz ghZag FHzeg R#Zeg e
ESitg _ 83 g3 g EE BEAE
Total number of meetings g8y - 4 3 1 1 1
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. 1P Man Tin, David (Chairman) EERLE(ZE) 4 N/A TR NA TiE A N/A T 5 _ 1
Dr. SZE Ping Fat EmEEL 4 NA MER N/A P& F N/A & 1
Executive Directors BITES
Ms. CHENG Wai Ling, Annie HgRE 4 NIA TR 1 1 1
Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew ey ok 4 N/A R ATER N/A R 1
Mr. MOK Kwai Hang ERlks 4 N/A R ARER N/A R 1
Independent Non-executive Directors  BI¥3178% ,
Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan RR&EE 4 3 1 1 1
Mr. POON Kai Tik BREEE 4 3 1 1 1
Mr. HUI Man Ho, Ivan AUELE 4 3 3 1 1
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

To ensure Directors’ contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant, the Company encourages Directors to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills and understanding of the business and markets
in which the Group operates. Directors are also provided with monthly
performance and position updates of the Group, and information such
as performance and key operational highlights to enable the Board
as a whole as well as each Director to discharge their duties. For the
financial year ended 31 March, 2020, all Directors have participated
in appropriate continuous professional development and provided the
Company with their records of training. A summary of training records
provided by the current Directors is as follows:

Reading articles, newspapers,
journal and/or updates
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Attending trainings
and/or seminars

MEXE RE
Name of Directors EENE WA,/ SBgHEN LEEER/IHAE
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. IP Man Tin, David (Chairman) EBARE(ZE) 4 4
Dr. SZE Ping Fat W= = v 4
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. CHENG Wai Ling, Annie g3/ A v ; v
Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew BEmEE v v
Mr. MOK Kwai Hang Sk E v : v
Independent non-executive Directors B FEHTES
Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan BRR&ELE 4 . v
Mr. POON Kai Tik AR EL v v
Mr. HUI Man Ho, Ivan U E v/ A

Company secretary

Company secretary is to ensure there is good information flow within
the Board and between the Board and senior management, provides
advice to the Board in relation to directors’ obligations under the Listing
Rules and applicable laws and regulations and assists the Board in

implementing the corporate governance practices. Company secretary -

has provided his training records to the Company indicating his
compliance with the training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

Independent Professional Advice

The Company has set up a procedure agreed by the Board for its
Directors to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, and at the Company’s expense to discharge their duties
to the Company.
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Chairman and Management

The roles of the Chairman is separated from that of the CEO and their
responsibilities are clearly established. The Chairman and CEO of the
Company are Mr. IP Man Tin, David and Ms. CHENG Wai Ling, Annie
respectively. The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to
the Board to ensure the Board will act in the best interests of the Group.

The CEO will work with executive committee (includiné; head of each
department) and other executive Directors to manage the businesses
of the Groub. The CEO is responsible for the day-to-day management
of the business of the Group, attends to formulation and successful
implementation of policies, and assumes full accountability to the Board
for all operations of the Group.

Two of the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. CHAN
Chung Yee, Alan and Mr. HUI Man Ho, Ivan have the appropriate
professional accounting experiences and expertise. The Board
membership is covered by professionally qualified and widely
experiencéd personnel so as to bringing in valuable contribution and
different professional advices and consultancy for the development of
the Company. Over one-half of the Board members have recognised
legal, professional securities and/or accounting qualifications.

In the course of discharging their duties, the Directors act in good faith,
with due diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. Their responsibilities include:

- regular Board meetings focusing on business strategy, operational
issues and-financial performance;

- active participatic’m on the boards of subsidiaries and associate;
- approval of annual budgets for each operating company covering
strategy, financial and business performance, key risks and

opportunities;

- monitoring the quality, timeliness, relevance and reliability of
internal and external reporting;

- reviewing of the Compliance with the CG Code;
- monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of

management, Board members and shareholders, including misuse
of corporate assets and abuse in related party transaction;
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- ensuring processes are in place to maintain the overall integrity
of the Company, including financial statements, relationships with
suppliers, customers and other stakeholders,.and compliance with
all laws and ethics; and

- reviewing of the effectiveness of the risk mahagement and internal
control systems of the Company through the Audit Committee.

To enable the Company’s Directors to meet their obligations, an
appropriate organizational structure is in place with clearly defined
responsibilities and limits of authority.

Board Committees

A number of Board Committees, including Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee, Credit Committee,
Executive Committee, Compliance and Risk Steering Committee
and Strategy Management Committee have been established by the
Board to strengthen its functions and to enhance its expertise. These
committees have been formed with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with the committees authority and duties.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee according to “A
Guide for the Formation of an Audit Committee” published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In accordance
with the requirements of the CG Code, the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee was revised and approved on 18" July, 2005 and 16"
March, 2012 to comply with the provisions set out in the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting system and internal control procedures, review of
the relationship with the auditors and financial information of the Group.
The revised terms of reference, explaining its role' and the authority
delegated to it by the Board are available for inspection on request at
the Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

As at 31t March, 2020, the Audit Committee of the Company is
comprised of three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan, Mr. POON Kai Tik and Mr. HUI Man Ho,
Ivan. It is chaired by Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan. It reports directly
to the Board and reviews matters within the scope of audit, such as
financial statements and internal controls, to protect the interests of the
Company'’s shareholders.

The Audit Committee meets regularly with the Company’s external
auditors to discuss audit process and accounting issues, and reviews
effectiveness of internal controls and risk evaluation. Written terms
of reference, which describes the authority and duties of the Audit
Committee are regularly reviewed and updated by the Board.
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Set out below is the summary of work done in financial year 2020:

to review ‘the interim financial report and annual financial
statements;

- to review effectiveness of the internal control system, financial
controls and risk management system;

- . toreview auditors’ statutory audit plan and letters of representation;
- to consider and approve audit fees and audit work;

- ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the Company;,

- toreview of continuing connected transactions and annual cap;

- review of the internal audit review reports prepared by the internal
audit function and discuss the risk management and internal
control issues of the Group;

- review of the 2020 internal audit plan; and

- review of the updated reports on substantiation of the resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions and their training
programmes and budget, with a recommendation to the Board for
approval.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited, be nominated for ‘re-appointment as external
auditors of the Company at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings during the year. Details of
individual attendance of its members are set out in the table above.

Remuneration Committee

As at 318 March, 2020, the Remuneration Committee is comprised of
independent non-executive Directors Mr. POON Kai Tik, Mr. CHAN
Chung Yee, Alan and Mr. HUI Man Ho, Ivan and an executive Director,
Ms. CHENG Wai Ling, Annie. Mr. POON Kai Tik is appointed as
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Committee shall meet not
less than once every year. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee have been reviewed with reference to the CG Code.
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The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
review and consider the Company’s policy for remuneration of Directors
and senior management, to determine remuneration packages of
executive Directors and senior management including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, and to recommend to
the Board remuneration of non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors. Set out below is the summary of work of the
Remuneration Committee done in financial year 2020:

to review the remuneration policy for the financial year 2020;

to review the terms of reference of remuneration of committee;

to review the policy for the remuneration of the Directors; and

to review the annual share option policy (if any).

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the financial year
ended 31t March, 2020. Details of individual attendance of its members
are set out in the table above. 5

Nomination Committee

The Board has established a Nomination Committee on 21st March,
2012 comprising one executive Director, Ms. CHENG Wai Ling, Annie
and three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. POON Kai Tik,
Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan and Mr. HUI Man Ho, Ivan. It is chaired by
Mr. POON Kai Tik. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee,
which is" available on the Company’s website, set out details of the
Committee’s duties, powers and functions, nomination procedures and
the process and criteria adopted for selection and recommendation of
candidates for directorship of the Company, summary of which in the
financial year 2020 is set out below:

- to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors;

- to review and recommend the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy;

- toreview the size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience and length of service) of the Board annually; and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to implement the Company’s corporate strategy;
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- toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships;

- to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

- to make recommendations to the Board on the r‘elevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the financial year
ended 31* March, 2020. Details of individual attendance of its members
are set out in the table above.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable candidates to the
Board for it to consider to appoint as director to fill casual vacancies
and consider of directors to be re-appointed at an annual general
meeting. b ' :
The factors listed below would be used as reference by the Nomination
Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

- Reputation for integrity;

- Accomplishment and éxperience in the relevant industries in
which the Company’s business is involved and other professional
qualifications;

- Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest; and

- Diversity in all aspects including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills, knowledge and length of service.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive
and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to nominate
any person, as it considers appropriate.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the nec'essary, personal
information in a prescribed form, together with their written consent to
be appointed as a director and to the public disclosure of their personal
data on any documents or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in
relation to their standing for election as a director.
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Credit Committee

A Credit Committee comprises two executive Directors and
other members responsible for overseeing the granting of credit
facilities. Daily operation of money lending will be guided by the
stringent procedures as prescribed by the internal control manual. The
Committee meets weekly and ad-hoc meetings will be held when market
and economic conditions changes significantly.

Executive Committee

The Committee comprises the CEO and the heads of each departments
of the Group. The Committee manages the day-to-day business of the
Group and meets regularly to resolve problems, makes decisions on
business matters to achieve corporate goals and objectives.

Compliance and Risk Steering Committee

The Group has established a Compliance and Risk Steering Committee
headed by the Compliance Officer. The objectives of the Compliance
and Risk Steering Committee are to:

- maintain and promote the fairness, efficiency, competitiveness
transparency and orderliness of the Group’s business;

- promote understanding by the staff members of the operation and
functioning of the Group’s business;

-  provide appropriate protection for the Group’s clients; and
- prevent crime and misconduct in the Group’s business.

The Compliance and Risk Steering Committee meets regularly to
discuss any current compliance issue and enhance the Group’s
practice and relevant compliance issue if necessary. It is believed that
better and balanced corporate governance environment will help to
enhance the Group’s expanding process which in turn translates into
shareholder value in the future.

Strategy Management Committee
The Group has established a Strategy Management Committee headed

by an executive Director. The Strategy Management Committee meeting -

is held on a regular basis. The objectives of the Strategy Management
Committee include:

- formulation of medium and long-term strategies of the Group;
- review of operations and business activities of the Group; and

- making recommendations to improve operational efficiencies.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board as.a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continudus professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG code and
disclésure in the Corporate Governance Report. -
Internal Control and Risk Management
The internal controls of the Group are designed to prbvide reasonable
assurance that the Group’s assets and shareholders’ investments are
safeguarded against unauthorised use or disposition, transactions are
executed in accordance with the management’s authorisation, internal
audit, proper accounting records are maintained, and the relevant
legislation and regulations are being complied with.

Internal control procedures and risk management systems are in place
in each of the principal operating units of the Group. The Compliance
Department undertakes the role of reviewing and assessing the Group’s
internal control system implemented in the principal operations for their
respective effectiveness and efficiency on a continuous basis.

The key tasks basically include:

- reviewing the Group’s principal activities-and risk management
effectiveness;

- conducting comprehensive examination of the practices and
procedures as to the recognition of income and éxpendjture; and
internal control 'systems of the business units of the Group on a
regular basis;
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- undertaking special reviews and investigations of areas for
improvement identified by management; and

- the Audit Committee of the Group reviews internal control issues
identified by external auditors, regulatory authorities and the
management, and evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the

Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The Compliance Department” has conducted a thorough review and
assessment of the Group’s existing internal control systems. The
review covers all material activities, including finance, operational and
compliance controls and risk management.

Internal Audit

Internal audit is an independent function reporting to the Board.
It provides an independent and objective assurance to safeguard
the Group’s operations. It effectuates a systematic and disciplined
approach to evaluate and improve the Group’s process on risk
management, internal control and governance. The audit plans are risk
based to ensure that a methodical coverage of the Group’s operations
and resources are focused on high risk areas. Ad hoc reviews are
conducted on areas of concern where necessary.

The Board,
of resources,

through the Audit Committee, reviews the adequacy

training programmes, budget, qualifications and
experience of the accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
staff in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Audit Committee and the Board review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and fulfill the
requirement of the CG Code regarding risk management and internal

control systems in general.

Dissemination of Inside Information

The Board ensures the inside information is kept strictly confidential
until the relevant announcement is made. The Directors are not aware
of any significant areas which need to be brought to the attention of the
Shareholders.

Finance

The .Company’s assets were used in an appropriate manner, the
expenditures in each of the operating units of the Group were under
strict control. Expenditures exceeding certain predetermined amounts
needed management’s authorisation. Accounting records were properly
maintained.
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Operation

A hierarchical system with proper work flow and reporting procedures
was duly established in each of the operating units. Every employee
was assigned with a specific area of duty and responsibility

Regular meetings with the attendance of senior management and
representatives from each of the operating units were held during the
year in order to improve communication and identify botential issues
within the Group. '

Listing Rules Compliance

Throughout the year, the Group has fully complied with the Listing Rules
requirements. Financial reports, announcements and circulars have
been prepared and published in accordance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules.

Summary Remarks

The Board is satisfied that adequate measures have been put in place
to strengtHen and continue to improve the internal control systems. The
Listing Rules Task Force has been formed and continued to monitor
the operations of the Group. The prevailing internal control system are
complied satisfactorily with all the requirements of the Listing Rules.

External Auditors

During the year ended 31t March, 2020 the remuneration payable or
paid to the Group’s existingj external auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited are set out as follows:

Services rendered for the Group
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Audit services BRI 707 602
Non-audit and taxation services FEEZ LB BERE 30 AT

737 632

Going Concern

The Board, having made appropriate enquiries, considers that the
Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

BELE
EXERFHLEEEARAR  ARREERH
BRAER ARRBELE Bt ERREAH

BHRRERMFELEELTRAE -

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4EMAMWA )



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Directors’ Responsibility in Preparing the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. The Statements of the Auditors
about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 63
to 69.

Communication with Shareholders

Communications between the Company and its shareholders can be
through several means. The shareholders can visit the Company's
website at www.upbest.com to learn the general background of the
Company and its activities, which enable the general public to have
a better understanding of the Group. Extensive and detail information
related to the Group’s activities and financial data can be retrieved
from the annual report and interim report issued. In addition, the annual
general meeting provides an opportunity for direct communication
between the Board and the Company’s shareholders.

An AGM held on Friday, 30" August, 2019, the Chairman of the Board
and the representative of external auditors were available to answer
questions at the AGM. The chairman of the meeting had explained the
procedures of conducting a poll during the meeting. All resolutions were
proposed by the Chairman at the AGM and voted separately by way of
poll. All the votes cast at the said meeting were properly counted and
recorded.

Shareholder’s Right and Investor Relations

The Way for Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
general meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition of
any two or more members of the Company deposited at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company
ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying
the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided
that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which

carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. General .

meetings may also be convened on the written requisition of any one
member of the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.
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OVERVIEW

The board of. directors of the Company (the “Board”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) is pleased to present the ESG report (“ESG
Report”) for the year ended 31t March, 2020.

The ESG Report outlines the Group’s sustainability initiatives and
selected Key Performance Indicators (“KPI”) that are' material to the
Group and its stakeholders on environmental, social and governance
issues for the year ended 31% March, 2020. Our Group has fully
embraced social responsibility as our contribution to address the ESG
requirements and challenges society faces. We have implemented
a number of significant initiatives relating to employment and labour
practices, operation management and environmental protection.

The Group recognised that sustainable development as one of the core
values of our Group. The incorporation of the concept of sustainable
development into business operations would create long-term value for
employeeé, customers, business partners, shareholders, investors and
the community.

REPORTING BOUNDARY AND REPORTING PRINCIPLE

The policies, statements, data and other contents in this ESG report
encompass all business scopes of the Company. The information
included in this report covers the period from 1st April, 2019 to 31¢
March, 2020, unless otherwise stated.

This Report was prepared according to the “comply or explain”
provisions of Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchangé of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The
scope of this Report covers the principal businesses operated by the
Group in Hong Kong and Macau which are the principal locations of the
Group’s operation. This Report has been passed and approved by the
Board of Directors.

FEEDBACK

If you have any comments and advice on this Report or our
performance on sustainable development, please contact us by email
at info@upbest.com. Your feedback would greatly help us continuously
improve our policies for promoting the sustainable de\}elopmgnt of the
Group.
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SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholder engagement is important for us to understand the
expectations of key stakeholders, thus formulating strategies and put
into practice corresponding policies focus on stakeholders’ concerns
and expectations. We have engaged the stakeholders directly and
indirectly, including the Board of Directors;, employees, customers,
suppliers and investors, through different forms of communication. The
table below sets out the concerned matters of different stakeholders
during the reporting period.

Stakeholder
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Customers
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Community
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Legal compliance
Anti-corruption and anti-money
laundering
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Operation performance
Risk management
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Customer relationship
Responsible investment
Risk management
EFBR

BEERE
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Long-term career development
Health and safety
Remuneration and benefits
Staff training
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REEZE
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Community service

N R
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Policies and regulations updates
On-site investigations

Formal correspondence
Tele-communication
BERFEREH

H5AE

E{E K

BTilE

Company website

Annual general meeting
Announcements and disclosures
Public reports

UNETEER

BRERBEFERE
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Telephone/E-mails
Surveys
Conferences

B/ BFHM
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&
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Regular management & staff meetings
Internal policy circulation
Performance Evaluation
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REFE

Telephone/E mails

BFE/EFBH
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MATERIALITY -ASSESSMENT

Directors have. evaluated the materiality of ESG issues to the Group
of which 15 major issues of them have been identified. Company has
sought stakeholders to score each sustainability issue according to
their views towards the importance to the Company and to stakeholders
respectively. Materiality matrix graph has been prepared based on the
scores given by the stakeholders as follows:

BERMAMHG

EZCH A TESGHEHSEMNERN  Hh i
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FEULRBETHD  -EEUEREERRENR
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Materiality Matrix ZEE 4B

Energy conservation and.emission reduction £ HE I e —

Paper conservation &%) 8 4 I

Waste classification #1548 I

Compliance of labour law &% &4 T& # —

Staff training & T3 .
Health and safety Rz 8% 2 I e

Staff remuneration and benefits B T 7 k4@ 7 ]

Legal com.pliance ARREE ; —
Operation performance 4& & 24 — .
Risk control @& 1E ] |

Supply chain management £/ EE N S O S

Anti-corruption and anti-fraud RE B &R SR I
Customer relationship & FRE% I e ——
Customers’ privacy &P Lk I e
Community service 2z IR . I e

M Stakeholder #EzsE

Directors are of the view that those issues identified are regarded as
material and allow us to determine future business strategies based
on those issues in order to éffectively respond to our stakeholders’
concerns and expectations.

We shall continue to collect stakeholders’ opinions, and take into
consideration the valuable suggestions and advice to proactively
implement our policies on environmental protection and social care to
foster sustainable developmen{.

B Company A F]

EERR CEAMBLABKASTEERN
W B APIBE R I L B R HE T R R KIS B
B - NEA B E B R AREEMBIIMAE -

BMBEBERENSHEREENER  LZBEE
MERMER  NEEEERMAMRERENL
SREHRARE A HERE -

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (3 %t 4 4 45 B 2 ] )



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

i%

ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

Our Group treasures resources in the earth and considers building a
sustainable working environment as an important aspect in our business
strategies. The Group is committed to comply with laws and regulations
related to the environment and adopts various practices to prevent
pollution, reduce carbon footprint, increase recycling and minimise
use of natural resources by continually improving our environmental
management practices and measures.

During the year 31%t March 2020, we has no known non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes.

Emissions

As the Group is not involved in any manufacturing activities. Emissions
produced directly by the Group only related to the executive passenger
vehicles used for senior executive staff’s local travel.

Unleaded Petrol used by the executive passenger vehicles of the Group
during the year ended:

N
/=]

v 8 R E wOH

BIESE

AEEVEHRER  URBYASETERE
BRMEENLBEE - ALERESESR -
EEBNETRRAREEERT BB ENE
BMMBEEEE R REEARGIESE R
Y ENERREERDERARALR -

BE_ZT_-_TF=
EREBERNAE
5 BERBEEEZE
Bl

A=+—Ri - #MALBENE
KB - RIK R L
)

MELFRBAEERA

2.3, €7)]

ARAREY &2 BEFARERY - AREEER
EENHNERRSRTREIAIAE - ER
2 e Pl I

AEBNERTHREIRSBERBEATAS
LE R P O 4 8 T

2020
Gaseous fuel consumption REMEERE ZE-EF
Emission data from vehicles ER T2 3,08 7
Carbon dioxide (CO,) k= (774 6,536.4 kg (Af)
Nitrogen Oxides (NO,) ﬁ%{m;%{tﬁﬁ 2,409.6 g(®)
Sulphur Oxides (SO,) kRl 40.3 g(m)
Particulate Matter (PM) 2N 177.4 g (ﬁ:)
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Greenhouse gas emissions

During the year, there was 106.0 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
greenhouse gases emitted from the Group’s business operation which
mainly represent the consumption of electricity and papers.

BEREBHER

REEF  AREZBEEBFHMT106.0M8 8 =
SIHMEERERE  TEESNNRRNHERES
o

Greenhouse Gas Emission BRERBHEN :giz';zio

Scope 1 - Direct emissions HEN-EZHR 6.5 tonne (M)
Scope 2 - Indirect emissions & B2 — B 91.7 tonne (IA)
Scope 3 - Ot‘her indirect emissions #E3— Kb EEHEN 7.8 tonne (M)
Total 1B 5t 106.0.. tonne (M)

Energy and resources consumption

During operation, non-hazardous waste generated are mainly recycled
wastes such as papers. The Group considers that conservation
of natural resources ‘is an important element for our sustainable
business. We promote various measures to efficiently use of our energy
as well as effectively minimize wastage throughout our daily operation.

Details of energy and resources consumed during the year ended 31*
March, 2020 are tabulated below:

BERMEFHRE

EEEBRT  EANECREMIERDKH
BYMAR - ARERSREBRERERAA
FEXTMERLE - RMHEESEER  UF
MR EMIOEERLND B EEETARE -

BE_Z_ZF=RA=1+—-HILFEMEREZH
RRBERFBWT :

2020
Energy and resources consumption BER AN B RO —E-EF
Electricity r BN 116,104.7  mWh(FRH)
Water I 7K 330.2 m3 (32 5 K)
Paper 4% 1,549.7 kg (BF)
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Efficient use of resources

We recognise the importance of efficient use of resource. Due to
business nature, we consume considerable amounts of electricity and
papers and with the efficient use of such, we try our best to minimize the
impact on the environment whilst we grow our businesses.

We have also provided environmental protection guideline to educate
our staff to adopt responsible behavior and promote environmental
protection in our work- place and suggest ways to conserve the
consumption of resources.

We promote green office concept in our workplace to save our
electricity consumption. For instance, staff are reminded to set up the
temperature of air conditioner according to seasonal changes and
switch off lights and equipment after work, during lunch break or during
the time working outside the office and wherever possible. Energy
efficient office equipment is always preferred in making purchase
decisions.

To save papers, we encourage to use duplex printing for internal
documents in order to maximize the usage of waste paper. Facilities
and procedures are in place for paper waste recycling.

In addition to the resources conservative measures as stated above,
our Group also actively participates in recycling schemes. Equipment
such as computers, printers, and toner cartridges are returned to
suppliers. An electronic platform is used within the Group for internal
administration and effective communication with all staff at office.

Our Group is committed to uphold the resources conservation and
environmental protection in our business operation. In the future, we
continue our commitment in environmental protection into and strive to

build a greener and sustainable environment.
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SOCIAL ISSUES HERE
Employment . FE
2020
-t 3-3
Employee by age and gender Turnover by age group and gender
EERFRRMLA EBERKZFRRMR

Male Female Male Female
S prg i3 S prg i3
0-18 years oldpg - - - -
19-30 years old#% = B — -
31-45 years oldpk 8 4 - 3 -
46-60 years oldpx 13 6 2 1
“ 61 years old or abovepR kA + - 2 > 6 1 -
Total 23 16 3 1

st

Our employees are the most important asset that can drive the
long-term development and _sustainability of the Group. We provide
benefits to our employees including salaries, incentives, directors’
fees and contribution to defined contribution retirement scheme.
Remuneration and benefit packages are determined with reference
to the position,v'skills, capability and performance of employees. Our
human resources department is responsible to comply with the following
applicable employment-related laws and regulations in Hong Kong:

J Employment Ordinance

. Minimum Wage Ordinance

L Employees’ Compensation Ordinance

J Sex Discrimination Ordinance

o Disability Discrimination Ordinance

o Family Status Discrimination Ordinance

o Race Discrimination Ordinance

° Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
o Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
o Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance

o Prevention of Bribery Ordinance

BERBMAREZAE —REEEDRHERK

AREKEND N -BMARBREZENE
Tﬁ T RE) - EERE REREFRKG M
oo FHEENTER2RE TR ¥ BKee - 6
AMRBRETH - ARENANERBARE
BFUTEANBENEREEBNEENE
o

. B 151

. 515 T & 1601

. 1B S wEKp

. 1t B B8 e B

o I RRBBER

. R BE 9 (1 5048 16 1)

. T 1'%1%

. 52 il 15 2 78 & &t &1 R 15
. Hﬁk%ﬁziﬁﬁiﬁﬂ%ﬁ
. fBAER (L) 155
. B 1 R & 15k 1
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During the .year ended 31% March, 2020, the Group has no known
non-compliance with the above relevant regulations. We endeavour to
provide a well-structured and caring working environment to raise their
sense of belonging and work efficiency in the Group.

Health and Safety

Our Group strictly adhere to the laws and regulations regarding
occupational health and safety, for example the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance: We seek to provide a safe, health and
comfortable working environment for our employees to minimize any
adverse health and safety impacts arising from our operation.

According to our record during the year ended 31t March, 2020, no
work-related fatalities or sick leave for work injury were taken from our
employees.

Development and Training

The Group is aware of the importance of continuous development and
updates of relevant laws and regulations. Employees, especially those
who are involved in regulated businesses and activities, have to receive
continuous professional training including on-the-job training, in-house
regular meetings and training programs organized by professional
bodies to keep abreast of the latest market practices and matters
relating to our daily job duties. In-house regular meetings and training
are tailor-made by directors and senior management which covered the
key aspects as follows:

(1) Compliance and regulatory — general compliance, market and
regulatory updates, prevention of bribery, bankruptcy laws, data
privacy, the Money Lender’s Ordinance;

(2) Management skills and personal development — leadership
skills, supervisory skills, KPl setting, communication and
interpersonal skills, creative thinking and problem solving skills,
self-development skills; and

(3) General training - language skills, computer skills, debt .

collection skills and customer service skills.

Annual Report 2020 4E#

ot

g Kk E AR B &

REE-_Z-_TF-A=1+—HLFE ~5HE
YEAMTER DABRERH - ZARNRE—E
TERAENTERE  WRAAKENEER
MIEHE -

feEER2
AREBERETEERERERELZ2NERE
B PImBERERERGEN - RAARK/ET
RftE:  BREMFENTERE  THEEE
ENEFAINRERZ2NFERERE

BRERMNBE-_Z-_TF=A=1— Eﬁir
Mics  BMNEEYERNTHEMILTHRR -

BR RIE
EEEAIREXREEMEEOERLREN
EEH - EBE LHRSREAEEBRIHN

BT FEIFEZEEI BRERSEI A
HEHNSZMAIXEBERNTIRE - AT
BEsmHENRERMBE THERBNER -

NHBEHREENEIEBRHEZNSRERAR
BER EPBREATIE @A

(1) AREEE——RER RFIMBEREE

BR - fhE- WEED - BRLE - mE
INCIE

(2 EEROREAZR-|ERN - EEK
'ﬁ‘“*%ﬁ%ﬂhﬁ‘ﬁL&A%&

5 AERERBRERS  ARYER

T5wmld)

(3) IERIG-FBERID - BREEKE  BFAR

FRIT  BPR&RI

53



54

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B R - 8 kR B A

&

Employees are encouraged to attend seminars and read prescribed
periodicals to update the industry and regulatory latest developments
for their continuing competence; and professional employees
are required to comply with continuous professional training and
examination requirements as stipulated in relevant regulations.

During the year ended 31¢t March, 2020, a total of 17 hours of meetings
and training have been provided by directors and senior management
and the average training hour per employees was 8.7 hours.

Labour Standard

Child or forced labour are prohibited in our Group’s operation which
was in compliance with the Employment of Children Regulations,
made under the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57). To avoid such
practices happened in our Group, our human resources department is
responsible to check the resume, original identification card and other
certificates of new jointers and potential candidates in order to eliminate
the possibility of child and forced labour in our employment. Human
resources bdepartment also communicate with the candidates’ preceded
employment for verification purposes.

During the year ended 31t March, 2020, the 'Group had nil
non-compliance cases in relation to the violation of relevant child labour
and forced labour laws.

Supply Chain Management -

Due to the nature of principal business activities, we have no major
suppliers. The Group’s suppliers include various computer system
and software vendors, providers of market information, legal advisers
and other business services professionals. The procurement decision
is based on criteria éuch as price, reputation, track record of high
corporate standards, expertise, capacity, creditability, business stability
and product/service quality which we consider such would not pose
significant social risks for our business. In order to minimize possible
disruptions of supply chain, our management from different departments
maintained a close dialogue with the suppliers. We also expect that our
suppliers are of high quality and operate in compliance with applicable
local environmental laws, ordinances and regulations.
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Services Responsibility

The business activities of the Group are required to comply with the
rules and regulations of various regulators in Hong Kong such as Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission. The Group is responsible to comply with the
requirements of the rules and regulations in Hong Kong relating to our
services responsibility as below:

J Code of Conducts for"Persons Licensed by or Registered with
the Securities and Future Commission

o Securities and, Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)

J Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules

o Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules

o Securities and Futures (Client Securities) rules

o Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
'(Financial Institutions) Ordinance

J Drug Trafficking (Recovery of Proceeds) Ordinance

J Organised and Serious Crimes Ordinance

o United Nations (Anti-Terrorism Measures) Ordinance

The Group provides loan and margin financing to individuals and
corporates in Hong Kong. Corporate structured loans, mortgage loan,
consumer finance and small business loans are provided through
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group operate under the Money
Lenders’ Ordinance (“MLQ”), being licensed money lenders. The Group
also provides margin financing to our clients through another wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group operate under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”), being licensed margin financier. During the year,
our Group had no known cases of non-compliance with the above laws
or regulations.

In Hong Kong, both the MLO and SFO focuses on borrowers’ rights
as well as lenders’ practices. The Compliance and Risk Steering
Committee of our Group regularly review of the update of the code of
practice and relevant regulations to make sure compliance in various
business aspects such as customer relationship, know-your-client,
anti-money laundering, credit valuation, collection and recovery and
data privacy.
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We emphasize the importance of providing quality services to
our clients. All operational departments are responsible for the
implementation of the established policies and procedures based on
the internal control manuals set out by the Group. The internal control
manuals of our Group contain guidelines and implementation plans to

ensure:

° conduct business in an orderly and efficient man‘ner;

J protect the seburity of the assets for the Group and our clients;

o maintain proper records and ensure reliability of financial
information and other information used by the Group;

J prevent and detect potential fraud; and

o comply with all applicable laws and regulatory requirements.

The directors and compliance officer are responsible for overseeing
the day-to-day operations of departments and ensuring that the internal
control procedures are followed. In case of any complaint received from
our clients either verbally or in writing, the compliance department will
review suéh complaint to ensure that they are handled in a prompt and
appropriate manner. Our customer services hotline is set up to handle
complaints from clients. All valid complaints will be recorded monthly
by the compliance department. During the year ended 31st March, 2020,
we have received nil complaints from our clients.

Our Group emphasizes on the importance of protecting privacy of our
clients in the collection, précessing and use of their personal data
and is committed to the compliance of the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance and other relevant codes of practice issued by the Privacy
Commissioner for Personal Data.

We have a contractual obligation to protect information of our clients as
stated in the account opening agreements and treat their transactions
record and personal information as private and confidential, subject
to the disclosure requirements under the relevant laws, rules and
regulations.

During the year ended 31t March 2020, we have received nil
complaints from our clients relating to the violation of the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance.
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Anti-corruption/Anti-money Laundering

Our Group fully cooperate with the international drive against services
crime, drug trafficking and terrorism and is committed to assist
the authorities to identify money laundering and terrorist financing
transactions. We strict adhere to the applicable laws and rules in the
anti-money laundering and terrorist financing, including but not limited
to Drug Trafficking (Recovery of Proceed) Ordinance, Organised and
Serious Crimes Ordinance, Guideline on Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing, and United Nation (Anti-Terrorism Measure)
Ordinance.

Our Group has implemented an effective whistle blower policy for
reporting fraud and corruption. We encourage employees to report
on suspected business irregularities and provide clear channels
specifically for this purpose. During the year ended 315 March, 2020, no
significént risks relating to corruption had been identified. There were
no confirmed incidents in relation to corruption or public legal cases
brought against the Group or its employees. Also, no whistle-blowing
concerning a criminal offence or misconduct was received during the
year.

Community Investment

Our Group promotes social contribution of our member companies
to the local communities in which they operate, and attach much
importance to cultivating a sense of social responsibility among our
employees and encourage them to make better contributions to our
communities during and after work.
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‘ESG Issues as set forth in ESG Reporting Guide
(RE - -HERERAREEIDAMANRE - HERERZE

Reference

section/ Remark Comply or Explain

SEEEH /B BIFABE

A. Environmental Issues A. B35 &2

Complied

A1 Emissions Information on: Environment
A1 R (a) the policies; and issues oA
(b) compliance and material non-compliance REZE
with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, generation of hazardous. and
non-hazardous vvasteé, etc.
ERBERLEEREHER kRIS  EERE -
EREYMHELZH
(a) &% & _
(b) BTRBEERBRHUBTABEATENEREE KA
RE)EH -
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data.  Emissions Complied
MR B BRIRALA BRI KA BB - 7387 L EAR

KPI' A1.2
MREMEIRAL2

Greenhouse gas emissions in total, and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
BERBAENE WER) RRE (MUNEESEM
FERIHE) -

Greenhouse gas Complied
emissions BE#R

B E R

KPI A1.3
FRAMIEIRALS

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

FEEREFEEYEE (UHE)(ER) R#E (1
BEE8M  BERKMTE)

Waste generation Explained
was considered £ f##fE
insignificant.
BLEEEREY -

KPI A1.4
AR R MIETRAL 4

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit production
volume, per facility).

FFESXAERELE (UEE) (ER) REE (e
EEEN  BERMWHH) - :

Waste geﬁeration Explained
was considered B f#IE
insignificant.
RLUELRERY) -

KPI A1.5
BB WIERALS

Description of measures to mitigate emissions.and
results achieved.

LB ERENEREAERR

Waste Qeneration Explained
was considered 2 2
insignificant.
ROEEEEY -
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section/ Remark Comply or Explain

SEZEH,/ B BTABE

jExE

~ A. Environmental Issues A. JRIE &R

KPI A1.6
BB R WIETRALL6

Deséription of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
HIRBRAEREEREREMNGE REELENHERR
PRSRR -

Waste generation Explained
was considered 2 R
insignificant.

ROELRERY -

A2 Use of Resource

Policies on efficient use of resources including energy,

Efficient use of ~ Complied

A2 é;ﬁﬂﬁﬁ water and other raw materials. resources BEE8
BEUEREBR (BEER  KREMRME) BHBEK BRE Fﬁéfﬁ

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type Energy and Complied
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) resources BEE8

BIERAE IR 1RA2.1

and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

consumption.

facility). BERME R B
BRERESHERERSBEEER(WE - fkh) ,ﬁ@%%
BUTFRETREFE) R2E (NASBESEN - 81
MEEtE) o
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit Energy and Complied
R EBIRIZEA2.2 of production volume, per facility). resources B4

BEKEREE (MASEBEN BEREAHE) -

consumption.

RE IR A B R B 7

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and

KPI A2.3 Energy used in  Explained
R ERIERA2.3 results achieved. operation was £ fRIE
AL R L A st B RFTE AR © - insignificant.
L B R
"D o
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water : Explained
S IR IZA2.4 water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives  consumption was 2 %
and results achieved. insignificant.
W ESEROR LA A EREE - AR AKHES FKEBEE-

BN FTEMR -
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‘ESG Issues as set forth in ESG Reporting Guide
(RE - -HERERAREEIDAMANRE - HERERZE

Reference
section/ Remark Comply or Explain

SEEEH /B BIFABE

3z ¥ g

A. Environmental Issues A. IR 15 &

KPI A2.5
B M BALS

Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

R RHFAREMENSEE GBS E) R (NER) §4
EBMIEE -

Packaging Explained
materials used in
operation were
insignificant.
RERABEMN

A3 The Environment and

Natural Resources
A3 IRIFERRAEIR

Policies on minimizing the operation’s significant
impact on the environment and natural resources.

Efficient use of  Complied

KPI A3.1
BB IAMIEIRAS 1

BEEBEHHRFERRAREREREAF EOHE -

Description of fhe significant impacts of -activities on
the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them. :

HHRBERAAERNEAZEREENERTEN

5 1t ©

" resources SRy
BHERAR
Impacts of . Explained

activities on the B f#fE
environment and

natural resources

were insignificant.
REPHRERK
RERHZERED

B. Social Issues

B. H &&=

B1 Employment
B1 {Ef&

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

FRFMEGE BERET  TEBE RE #eT :

% %l REGAREMGEEREHN
(@) BSR: &
(b) BFHBETABEATYENBEEEERERNER -

Employment Complied
FE BEa#H
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ESG Issues as set forth in ESG Reporting Guide
(RE - HERERAREREIDAMANRE - HERERZE

#t g K

Reference

-~ JENTN
B /5

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT sl

[==3 .
ﬁ [=] = ,,'F' ” .
Beg W

section/ Remark Comply or Explain

SEZEH,/ B BTABE

B. 1 &4

"~ B. Social Issues

B2 Health and Safety
B2 REHEZ 2

Inforhation on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance and material non-compliance with
relevant standards, rules and regulations on providing
a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.
FARHEZ2THERBERRBETHEBEMAEEN
(a) B+ &

(b) Br RBREERMABER - RARBPIOEH -

Health and Safety Complied

REEZE

BEaR

B3 Development and
Training
B3 R KIE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities. '
BERRASIBTIEBRENMNBRRENEER - HlE
FEE -

Development and Complied

Training
EIEY L

BEaR

B4 Labour Standard

Information on:

Labour Standard Complied

B4 45 T8 (a) the policies; and 2T %R BEEH
(b) compliance and material non-compliance with
relevant standards, rules and regulations on
preventing child or forced labour.
B EET %5 TH
(@) K+ R
(b) BT RBEERIEREL  RARBHIOER -
B5 Supply Chain Policies on managing environmental and social risks of = Supply Chain Complied
Management supply chain. Management Eovs,
B5 f#tEEE T BREHEEEARE R SRBOEER HEEE IR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B R - £ 8 kR B B K &

Reference
‘ESG Issues as set forth in ESG Reporting Guide section/ Remark Comply or Explain
(RE - -HERERAREREIDAMANRE - HERERZE 2ELH /B EIREE
B. Social Issues B. & &R
B6 Product Responsibility Information on: 1 Services Complied

B6 EmET " (a) the policies; and Responsibility B4
Cy (b) compliance and material non-compliance with R#E&EF
relevant stahdards, rules and regulations on health
and safety, advertising, labelling and matters
relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress. .
FHMRHEERNRENRRERZS - BE  REEEMN
KA T ER * ' X
(@) BUR : &
(b) BFREBEEREEER  RAURRGIEEHR -

B7 Anti-corruption Information on: © Anti-corruption/ : Compliéd
B7 RES (a) the policies; and Anti-money 2418
(b) compliance and material non-compliance with Laundering
relevant standards, rules and regulations on KREJ5/RIELE"
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRAMLER B8 RERARE

(@) BUR : &
(b) B R EREEREBER  RARROIEER -
B8 Community + Policies on community engagement to understand the ~ Community Complied
Investment . community’s needs where it operates and to ensure Investment BEE&8
B8 @I E its activities take into consideration communities’ HERE
interésts.

FRNHE2ERTREEMELEFTEREREEY
EESE B M HUR o

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4EMAMWA )



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B &t EH TR A E
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF UPBEST GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Upbest Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to 159, which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as at 31t March, 2020,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant-accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31t March,
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY:AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our op'inion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Annual Report 2020 4E#
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B Y % B M O®F

Key audit matter
BRELEE

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BEMOARERTRERRERSR

Impairment assessment of interest-bearing receivables from loans and margin financing

A7 BB E RN TR B E B W RRRERT (R

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
FLHRAUBHREMTE =T - :

As at 31¢ 'March, 2020, the gross amounts of interest-bearing
receivables from loans and margin finanoing were approximately
HK$954,821,000 and HK$132,135,000 respectively. Accumulated
impairment loss of approximately HK$116,701,000 and HK$75,395,000
was provided for interest bearing receivables from loans and margin
financing respectively. '
RZZE_ZTE=A=+—B WEMNESEKERKFRERRE R KFIAL
12 %8 5 Bl /& #1954,821,0005% 7T K& 132,135,000% 7T © B 2 5l 5t H A& Fl &
FEWE TR K £ R B & 10 R MR R RHR R AR E B 1 49116,701,0008 7T &
75,395,000/ 7T ©

During the year ended 31t March, 2020, impairment loss of approximately
HK$29,219,000 and HK$8,598,000 was provided for, interest-bearing
receivables from loans and margin financing respectively.
BE_Z_ZF=A=1+—BLFE HHgAMENERKERKFER
& ) e IR TE 5 R IR (B 5 18 729,219,000 7T K2.8,598,0007 T, ©

Management applied judgment in assessing the expected credit
losses. Receivables relating to customers with known financial
difficulties or significant doubt on collection of receivables are assessed
individually for ‘provision for impairment allowance. Expected credit
losses are also estimated by grouping the remaining receivables based
on shared credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for
likelihood of recovery, taking into account the nature of the customer
and its ageing category, and applying expected credit loss rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables. The expected
credit loss rates are determined based on historical credit losses
experienced and are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.
EEREETHESRGERBRRER 2 o EE %R 2 sk 8 R IEK
REEEARBNTFABENEKSIASEBIHREER BRHEEE
BTeRBERAZEERBEBERREKFBETHAM  ZREPIE
ERERREN BEHEERAEEANES ENREAHE  WHEHKRA
BEMETR B AENTE  BHREERAXIREMEENELEES
BEE  KHBEUARME %%ﬁﬁ1fwm BN E AT R ATREIE B RS o

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of interest-bearing
receivables from loans and margin financing
included, but were not limited to:

AR EBEUMAMNEBUERRTRAEE
WHIRETREMNENREFBEETRR

o Understanding and validating the
credit control procedures performed
by management, including its
procedures on periodic review ‘of
aged receivables and assessment on
_expected credit losses allowance of
receivables;

U TRANBEERERTHEEERRR -
a%m%%ﬁf&%m%&ﬁﬂﬁ%%
KIEHE B RAEBHE,

o Testing on a sample-basis, the
accuracy of ageing profile of the
receivables by checking to the
underlying agreements;

o BB E AR 9 METE%L@M
3 MEMESEEE SRR EEK
%Emﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁ

o Testing on a sample basis, the
subsequent settlement of the receivables
against bank receipts;

o MMTETLﬁMﬁ'%&%ZFWM
EERITHRRE R

o Obtaining management’s assessment
on the expected credit losses
allowance of the receivables. Checking
management’'s assessment based
on the historical settlement pattern,
correspondence with the customers,
evidence from external sources
including the relevant public search
results relating to the financial
circumstances of the relevant customers
and market research regarding the
relevant forward-looking information
used in management’s assessment;

. BSEREHRARXAHRERBLE
EEEE - RBEE L &R - RS

]]

BIE  SNEPRENER - BRERREP
HOBT 75 I AE R MY AR B 2 R R A5 R A
R B 72 ST 4 A e PR 40 A A AT HE U458

i’
mGHE - mEEEE MG
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Key audit matter
BRELEE

B MY % B OB O®R &

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BEAMARERT EEREERSH

Impairment assessment of interest-bearing receivables from loans and margin financing (Continued)

BB 7 BB R E AN TR BB B WO OR AV R AP A4 ()

Va‘luatién of investment properties
BREMEZHE
Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

F2HEAMRRM E7 -

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties to be approximately HK$1,642,000,000 as at 31t March,
2020 with a net loss on fair value changes for the year ended 31¢
March, 2020 recorded in the consolidated income statement of
approximately HK$44,000,000. Independent external valuations were
obtained. in respect of all of the portfolio of the Group.

ERERGEER_T_FF=A=+_ARENENRABHNR
1,642,000,0008 T - RBE_Z_ZF=A=+—-HIFEHFaRERT
gg@x@@%E%Momow%no%l%ﬁ&é@AﬂHE%ﬁ%%

We identified valuation of the Group’s investment properties as a key
audit matter because of the significance of investment properties
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements and because the
determination of the fair values involves significant judgment and
estimation, including selecting the appropriate valuation methodology
and market data.

BMRAEERBYENMELAERERTE RA/KREMEUSELR
EUBRRIEENRAABZREESEANAB R  OEEES
ARG R ERTRER

Annual Report 2020 4E#

° Examining the underlying documentation
supporting the value of the collateral, if
any, and the management’s key estimations
used in the individual impairment assessment
for these loans and receivables on a
sample basis; and

o FeoxHARmEBEEZRAER (W0F)
&ﬁa@FﬁLm&m&EWME“%
Qfgﬁ%%ﬁZﬁﬁﬁﬁ AT RO
A

o Reviewing the fair value of collateral
for all impaired amounts.

. RAEREHR  FEERRZOAAE-

We considered management's conclusion to
be consistent with the available information.
RMRREEENEREREAEE B -

Our procedures in relation to management’s
valuation of investment properties included,
but were not limited to:

%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%&ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%@$

o Evaluating the independent external
valuers’ competence, capabilities and
objectivity;

. 5T SN R AT AR R 2 BRBE B R
Bl

o Assessing the methodologies used

and the appropriateness of the key
assumptions and parameters based on
our knowledge of the property industry
and using our audit valuation experts;
“and

. BRERAUEHETENNZRERR -

FIEsT e LD aT A E A 505 - BIgd
BREMS OB 1E; M

o Checking, on sample basis, the

' accuracy and relevance of the input
data used.

. g R BB A RSN ERY
FABREME

We found the key assumptions were
supported by the available evidence.

BMERREEBEFBARER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B Y % B M O®F

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors .arerresponsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We hgve nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS '

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the conéolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Hit&#

BERREEHAMENRR - A0 ENBREFH
FREZMEER  ETERGEAMBHRRLA
REMRE ([EHLER]) -

RMHEEMBRRCBERTEREMLER - &
PreRtREEMNTAZEESER °

BARBRMEGRARBTRECESR  RAZEER
MEEMER RANEEAMENEEEEAH
BHRRIABMRELTERIBEAFEEAT
—B O ARMREAHER - RERAMRT
B WEMSLEMENFEERER &R
BMERE—FEIELRE - RMLHEBRULIES
Wi e

EERENEEERGANBRRZEL

EZRERBEAESIMAGRM 2B ENBR
SEARBERAAGIZBEACHRAUEEMAD
hZEEMBERE  URERESR/UEZA
B ARRREEGSMBRRE A EEHR
HAFRERMER 2 ERER -

REREAMEHRRE - EFREFHE BES
BzRmELeR ) YHERBR THREERSE
REFMEHE UREARELLEREHE
BKRFEZAER EREBERAEFLEE
FHBEMER BRI R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a materjal misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design, and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Annual Report 2020 4E#
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fairl presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our auqit.

. HESRARERLZ G ERZREN
e &R - REFIEROBZEE - #BE
RAGFERZAABREBHEANNE
EM - KM ERY ERENFEL
BRENELEEARRE - MREMRAR/E
EEATHEEN AL EERBME
ERRBEREIBRGAMBRMRTH
HBARE REABORESE IR
FREREZRRFERBER - RMANGEH
RENZHMFE AL ARG HETR
e AW RERBEKIENAHLER &

SETRBELE

. AERAMBRRCERBIRLIRA B
BNAT  BERE  URESHBERE
RETERBXSANEER -

. 5 BEEEBRAEBIDIMBLES
BDRR - BEOBRES  WEHEA
BIBBRALEER - AMEE B£EE
strhE - EERNT  RFABHER
RERBE -

REMERI  FMBREZZEQERT 1L
EGHE BRZHE EABRERS 88K .
{PIEEFET o 8B BB A ) 2 (R B RBREE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters, that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Yu Chi Fat.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practising Certificate Number: P05467

Hong Kong, 24" June, 2020
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
= & W = X

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 B E _F - RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

Notes 2020 2019
(In HK$'000) = (BB FrREN) B & —E-EF ==
Revenue Wz - 8 174,831 191,589
Other revenue H e zs 884 869
Net impairment loss of financial assets M EERRZER 9 (31,770) (51,216)
Net (decrease)/increase in fair value of REMEAREZ
investment properties % CRE) /18{E 17 (44,000) 175,000
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HE&EW% - #ERZERT
equipment ' B A 2 )5 A 1,455 7,047
Administrative and other operating BN E Mg
expenses’ (27,066) (26,807)
Finance costs BE KA 10 (9,355) (186)
Share of results of an associate JE(REE L AR 2 & (2,706) (5,708)
Profit before taxation % %5 Al A 14 62,273 290,588
Income tax expenses FERAX 14 (15,872) (28,039)
Profit for the year R F 46,401 262,549
Attributable to: (L :
Owners of the Company ZYNETEZZEDN 47,738 254,624
Non-controlling interests RS (1,337) 7,925
46,401 262,549
Proposed final dividend BRAERE 15 26,823 53,646 ‘
Earnings per share BRER

Basic and diluted (HK cents) HEAREE B 13 1.8 15

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  14KiBf & REN T A GBI REROBEKRZL S o
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME <53 |
£ &8 2@ B # &l .

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 % _F " R4FE=H =+—H IL4EE

2020 2019
(In HK$°000) (LB T T B E L) —ECEE —ET-NF
Profit for the year FREA 46,401 262,549
Other comprehensive loss Hit2mEiE%
Item that may be reclassified Vit ST ey i ES)
subsequently to profit or-oss Bm s EHEH
Exchange differences arising on BREBINEEEEZ
translation of foreign operations b X =% (2,530) (2,950)
Other comprehensive loss 2EHMEAER
for the year, net of tax (Big%EE) (2,530) (2,950)
Total comprehensive income for RAREEABEER
the year attributable to owners of 2 H KSR
the Company 43,871 259,599
Attributable to: FEfh
Owners of the Company RAREE A 45,208 251,674
Non-controlling interests R (1,337) 7,925
43,871 259,599

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Annual Report 2020 4E#

KM MBS RRM EREHPBRROARELD

71



72

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

m & B B KK R R

As at 31st March, 2020 ¥ 2 - F4E=H=+—H

Notes 2020 2019
(In HK$°000) * (LB T T 5 Ef7) B 5E —ECEE —E-NF
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - R KRR 16 988 1,065
Investment properties "EME 17 1,642,000 1,686,000
Intangible assets BV EE 18 2,040 2,040
Interests in an associate NN 19 34,029 39,265
Trade receivables B 5 WA 20 122,105 97,999
Other assets HEMEE 21 3,400 5,400
Deferred tax assets ELERIBEE 14 2,592 1,251
1,807,154 1,833,020
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 22 18 20
Properties held for development RER R 23 3,011 3,011
Trade and other receivables, deposits B 5 % E b e U GRIE
and prepayments BeRhBENAKA 20 946,826 695,239
Tax recoverable EEELEN 1,018 1,211
Bank balances and cash BTEBERS 24 480,212 371,127
1,431,085 1,070,608
Current liabilities RBEE
Borrowings EET 25 283,655 2,769
Amounts due to related parties JE 1 BE B A £ 208 26 697 1,274 "
Amount due to ultimate holding company & &&= 8% A 7308 27 188,839 166,795
Creditors and accrued expenses ERBERR N ENER 28 119,117 76,556
Provision for taxation TR B 12,840 13,368
605,148 260,762
Net current assets REEEFE 825,937 809,846
Net assets EEZFE 2,633,091 2,642,866

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #4EM4G WA )




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

= e B B K R R

As at 31st March, 2020 P 2 - FFE=H=+—H

Notes 2020 2019

(In HK$'000) (BB FTREN) Bt & —E-EF —ET-NF

Capital and reserves EXREKf#E

Share capital [N 29 26,824 26,824

Reserves ' 1 2,580,617 2,662,232

Proposed dividend ) B BB 1% 26,823 53,646
Equity attributable to owners of the RRRHEE NELERS

Company _ 2,634,264 2,642,702

Non-controlling interests R = (1,173) 164

Total equity EREE 2,633,091 2,642,866

The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 159 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24"
June, 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cheng Wai Lun, Andrew
R

Executive Director

HITEE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
e B ®m 8 8 X

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EERARERA
Non-

Share  Share Contributed Translation  Retained  Proposed controlling Total

capital  premium surplus reserve profits  dividend Total interests equity
(In HK$000) (LEEFrEEL) Bx  RiEE EHER  EXGR  REEW  RRRR B FERES  BRAE
As at 1< April, 2018 R=E2-N\EMA-A 6824 304284 8515 (119) 2051524 96564 2487592 (561) 2,487,031
Profit for the year ERigi] - - - - || 4624 - || 254,62 7925 || 262549
Other comprehensive loss FEEENZEER

for the year - - - (2,950) - - (2,950) - (2,950)
Total comprehensive income/ rERENE/ (BR) 2%

(loss) for the year - - - (2,950) 254,624 - 251,674 7,925 259,599
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests 2R & T RRIER = - - - = - - N )] (7,200)
Dividend paid EfffkE - = - - - (96564)  (96,564) - (96564)
Proposed final dividend REXSRE - - - - (53646) 53646 - - =
As at 31 March, 2019 RZZ-AE=A=1-A 26,824 304,284 8,515 (3,069) 2,262,502 53,646 2,642,702 164 2,642,866
Profit/(loss) for the year Epgil/ (i) - - - - 47,738 < 47,138 (1337) || 46401
Other comprehensive loss rEREM2EER

for the year - - - (2,530) - - +(2,530) - (2,530)
Total comprehensive income/ AERERE/ (BR)BE

(loss) for the year - - - (2,530) 47,738 - 45,208 (1,337) 43,871
Dividend paid EfRE = 7 f £ - (03646)  (53646) = (93646)
Proposed final dividend R SR 2 - - - - (2682) 2682 . - -
As at 31 March, 2020 R-E-BE=A=1-H 26,824 304,284 8,515 (5599) 2273417 26,823 2,634,264 (1173) 2,633,091

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )




‘CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS <3

= & B %

OB R L

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 % _F " R4FE=H =+—H IL4EE

2020 2019
(In HK$'000) (A EBFTABEN) —E-EF —E-NF
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBRERE
ACTIVITIES .
Profit before taxation i 754 A1 Vi 62,273 290,588
Adjustments for: ER T ESEELAE
Finance costs BB A 9,355 186
Depreciation e 141 149
Net impairment loss of financial assets CREERBETFER 31,770 51,216
Net decrease/(increase) in fair value of BEMENRBZERE/
investment properties (#EE) 44,000 (175,000)
Share of results of an associate JE(REE & DR 2 #E 2,706 5,708
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEDE  KRERR
equipment FTEE 4 2 )5 7 (1,455) (7,047)
Operating cash flows before working R EEESEHA
capital changes Z ISR F 148,790 165,800
Decrease in inventories FE2ZRD 2 3
Increase in trade and other receivables, ZHREMEWGIE  Ze Rk
deposits and prepayments B FRIE 2 32N (307,463) (302,441)
Decrease/(increase) in other assets HuEEZRD,/ (#in) 2,000 (200)
(Increase)/decrease in trust and segregated EERPFHEEF AL&FEE
accounts included in bank balances REBITRERBZ (B M) /B (30,516) 11,023
Decrease in unsecured other borrowing IR E A R 2R 2 B (318) (830)
Decrease in amounts due to related parties  FE1tBR Bt A + 308 2 7 2 (577) (846)
Increase in amount due to ultimate holding & S 423 i /A &) ZUIE 2 18 N
company 22,044 67,486
Increase/(decrease) in creditors and ENRBERENERZ
accrued expenses #0/ CRid) 42,561 (40,063)
Cash used in operations ReXBEAZHE (123,477) (100,071)
Interest paid for other borrowing arising ENESBRGAELR
from precious metal trading H A & A A (149) (186)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BERNBEBFER (17,548) (6,305)
Overseas tax paid B8 5N 5K = (3,245)
Net cash used in operating activities REXKERACEEFE (141,174) (109,807)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= a8 B £ R B X

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 B E _F - RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated

financial statements.

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #4EM4G WA )

Note 2020 2019
(In HK$'000) (AEEFTAEN) B 55 —E-EF —E-NF
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB B R HE (64) (49)
Proceed on disposal of property, plantand &M% - #ERRENMAER
equipment 1,455 7,172
Net cash generated from investing RETBHELEZRSFME
activities 1,391 7,123
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METB2RERE
ACTIVITIES .
Dividend paid BERE (53,646) (96,564)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest ERIRE T IR E S - (7,200)
Interest paid for bank borrowing B RITERAE (9,206) ¥
Repayment of bank borrowing EBEIBTER (18,796) a
_ Proceeds from bank borrowing HRAT 18 B P15 K 300,000 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) METBHEE/ (BA) 2
financing activities B&FE 218,352 (103,764)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH BeRBevEEBY2F
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,/ () 78,569 (206,448)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FORERAE2EEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 308,365 ' 514,813
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FERZRERREZEEY
THE END OF THE YEAR 386,934 308,365
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERRECEB/BNERZDN
- AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash in hand, non-pledged short-term Re  EARBERK
deposits and general accounts included —RIRITP D8R
in bank balances 24 386,934 308,365

KR MBS RRM ERE H A BERRAOBKRES °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A M B ® K B

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &% & _R4E=H =+— H IL4EE

GENERAL

Upbest Group Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business is 2" Floor, Wah Kit Commercial
Centre, 300 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

As at the date of this report, CCAA Group Limited held direct
interests in 1,992,721,496 (2019: 1,992,721,496) shares of the
Company, representing approximately 74.29% (2019: 74.29%) of
the issued share capital of the Company.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of a wide
range of financial services including securities broking, futures
broking, securities margin financing, money lending, corporate
finance advisory, assets management, property investment and
precious metal trading.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(“HK$'000"), except when otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= & B B | x K O

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) has applied the following new and amendments to Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the
first time for the financial year beginning on or after 1t April, 2019:

HKFRS 16 ' Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and

' Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases, and the related
interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS
16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this standard to
contracts that were not previously identified as containing a lease.
Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts which already
existed prior to the date of initial application. '

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 15t April 2019,
the Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance with the
requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract
contains a lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee

As at 1°t April 2019, the Group has non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of rental of office. The remaining terms of
these operating leases were less than 12 months. The Group
has accounted for these leases as short-term leases under the
practical expedient permitted by HKFRS 16.

The adoption of HKFRS 16 will not have a material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and financial positions.

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16, the
Gfoup is not required to make any adjustment on transition for
leases in which the Group is a lessor but account for these leases
in accordance with HKFRS 16 from the date of initial application
and comparative information has not been restated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= & B B | x KM

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective: :

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
Amendments to'HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business*

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
. Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform?

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent Concession?

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January, 2020.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1t June, 2020.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1%t January, 2021.

4 Effective for business combinations and-asset acquisitions for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 15t January, 2020.

® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to' be
determined.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs, a
revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was issued
in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, will
be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1¢ January,
2020.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
the new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &% & _R4E=H =+— H IL4EE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRS issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosure required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial assets that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share based payment transactions
that are within the scope of leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1%t April,
2019) or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use. ‘

For financial instruments and_investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:
Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
' (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques
for which all inputs which have a significant effect
on the recorded fair value are observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques

for which all inputs which have a significant effect
on the recorded fair value are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31%t March, 2020. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions,
unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions and dividends are eliminated on consolidation in
full.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling
interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or an
associate represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary
or associate at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
is presented separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position. Capitalised goodwill arising on an
acquisition of an associate (which is accounted for using the
equity method) is included in the cost of the investment of the
relevant associate.

Annual Report 2020 4E#

= 8

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 #&% %

3.

(b):

(c)

OB ® R K

ZREZAZ HIRER

B BRBE (&)

mEMBMREE
GEMBRREREARARENBA
AHEZZ-_TF=A=+—HLHF
Bz HBHR - MEBREZHBERR
BARE 2 18R RS B LR R AR
RA—HMNEHARRGH - WELRA
Z%?EW$E%'%$%EW%E
HEEER  FAGEKRE  UHE
JA”Aﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂi*Hﬁ
k- FIEREARRIRZ — iR
i%‘EIW“TWX%F$Z$T
REENREANGARER2EY
i o
NEMBLRRAERSHARER A
BRI S -

GRS RN BARTYFE
RARERARBAZAMNESNE -

L
RE-RNBARKBERRELL
AEDERERABEKEE ARG
GELE N - PN N Rl
E BERIAREBAAEBZIESZL
Z8 o BEREE DR AR E M R
ﬂﬁ@ﬁﬂ%°

i

YENBRREL 2 ERNMCAELR
FABBRREADFIE - JiE—
BEERREE cAE (ASED

‘%ﬂ%)B@%%%%%“TZ&é

A o

383



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &£ _F _FE=H =1+ —H IL4EE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EARSTHEME(E)
(Continued)
(c) Goodwill (Continued) (c) EmE(E)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups: of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and
whenever there is an indication, that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that financial
year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount
bf each asset in the unit. Any impairment Joss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods. '

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or an associate, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Excess of an acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of an
acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost (“discount on acquisitions”).

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a
subsidiary represents the excess of the net fair value of
an acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities attribute to the Group over the cost of the business
combination. Discount on acquisition is recognised, after
reassessment, immediately in the consolidated income
statement. A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition
of an associate or a joint venture is included as income
in the determination of the investor’s share of results of
the associate or joint venture in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 #&#%E =% “Z4E=H =+—H IL4E

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and .any directly attributable
costs of bringing the assets to working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of
property, plant and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul cost, is
normally charged to the consolidated income statement in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to
be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and
equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional
cost of the asset.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or fair value of
items of property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the following
rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the remaining terms

of the leases
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15% — 30%
Motor vehicles 15% — 30%

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as ‘right-of-use assets”
(upon application of HKFRS 16) in the consolidated statement
of financial position except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no, future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which the item is
derecogniséd.

Annual Report 2020 4E#

3.

EARHBEME (&)
(d) W% BERRE

ME  BERREDERRAERRE
HERZRBEREBERIE W%
BERRBERERARREBEEN
REEEEERTERRILEER
IHRERENERBHERAE - WE -
WERERBEEERABERAEED
X flmgErERBHER B
PREAZSAIRZ BARGEK
@R - WA AF BN A E
RIEFHERYE WERRERBEA
TRZARREENDABFMEMZIBER
T AZAXBERNL  FRZBEE
B ZBINRAS

WE M LREEB DERAMGEA
ERFER - AE AR T 54 R34
RARD A EFERE

HETHREF HEOFGHR
RE - ERBENFZME 15% - 30%
b=} 15% — 30%

REBEL M REFHHEGEEZ
EARRERYENRAEER(BEE
ELRBFRD)NFE  2BAE
REELHRETED 2 BRI
wENEHAAEOLHIDE

EHRBENRAETEIENBERT -
ARIBEERENHEE T ERR
REMBRRBRT 255 HE
BE|(ERBBMBHREEF165
&) ERRIAERADBERARARK

BYFERERI c EREEZERER |

ELMFRERT I KRN BI#E
BZAAEIEER  BEEDZIBR
0x - BER&E-

ME HELREBEBINHERSK
EREMREERAZEENSISEL
AR RAE B 5 B DU R » AR IE 1
RALBERES 2 EMKaEEE (A
HEMBIRFERZER ZIRAE
ZEBFE) IEt AR %R B BUR
RERZIEEWERA

85



386

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

"

N

PaN
=)

M B O® R M

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued) ,

(e)

()

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including properties under
construction for such purposes). Investment properties are
initially measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude
any prepaid or accrued operating lease income. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use or no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of_the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which the
item is derecognised.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only. substantive
rights-(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

Changes in" the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in consolidated
income statement. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment
losses. -
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &% & _R4E=H =+— H IL4EE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(9) Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation'in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity- method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under
the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee’'s net assets
and any impairment loss relating to the investment. Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated income statement, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the associates’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group'’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with the
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits.and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where

unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of -

the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee
at the date when significant influence is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &£ _F _FE=H =1+ —H IL4EE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EASTHERME(E)
(Continued)
(h) Intangible assets (hy BREE

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired are
recognised at cost. After initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are-carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is prdvided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in the consolidated income statement when
the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually by comparing their. carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested .for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost includes cost of purchase computed using the
first-in-first-out method. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to the sales proceeds of items sold in the ordinary
course of business after the end of the reporting period
or to manégement estimates based on prevailing market
conditions.
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3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

@

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value, except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
(“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary .

course of business are presented as revenue.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(j) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting

contractual cash flows and selling; and

e  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/initial
recognition ’of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations

applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

@

assets (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial

asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost

or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or

significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost. Interest income’ is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised

by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised

cost of the financial asset from the next reporting .

period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit impaired. ' '
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &£ _F _FE=H =1+ —H IL4EE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(j) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)
(ii) ~ Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as

FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value

gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since

initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant ins{rument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since ‘initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood
or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= & B B ® K KM

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &% & _R4E=H =+— H IL4EE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(j) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly -since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& B B & x KM =

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

"

N

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued) ,

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

1)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the

. Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events, of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted‘to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d)- it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

)]

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the:magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

o Nature of financial instruments;

o Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e  External credit ratings where available.
The greuping is regularly reviewed by management to

ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &£ _F _FE=H =1+ —H IL4EE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) "

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross

. carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception for trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 #&#%E =% “Z4E=H =+—H IL4E

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

@

(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including creditors and accrued expenses,
borrowings, amounts due to related parties and amount due
to ultimate holding company are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled.or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the ‘consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Properties held for development

Properties held for development are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to sale proceeds received after
the end of the reporting period less selling expenses, or

by management estimates based on prevailing market

conditions.

Costs of properties include acquisition costs, development
expenditure, interest and other direct costs attributable
to such properties. The carrying values of properties held
by subsidiaries are adjusted in the consolidated financial
statements to reflect the Group’s actual acquisition costs
where appropriate.

Properties held for development included in the current

assets are expected to be realised, or is intended for sales in
the Group’s normal operation cycle.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 #& £ —
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3.

FLREZAZ=T—HIREE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

Income tax expense
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting pe‘riod, and any
adjustmenfs to tax payable in respect of previous years,
current tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred taxation is recognised on all temporary differences
at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
'reporting purposes. f %
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences except where the deferred tax liabilities
arise from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax assets
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible ’temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be
utilised except where the deferred tax assets relating to
the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to
be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient future taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 #&#%E =% “Z4E=H =+—H IL4E

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

(m)

(n)

Income tax expense (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
assets are realised or the liabilities are settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred taxation
is recognised in ‘the consolidated income statement,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred taxation is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
these assets until such times as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing cost eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statéments of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 #& £ —
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

(n) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies
The results and financial positions of all the Group’s

entities that have a functional currency different from

the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each of the statement

of financial position presented are translated at

the closing

rates at the date of that statement of

financial position;

(b) income and expenses for each of the income

statement

are translated at average exchange

rates (unless this average is not a reasonable

approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates

prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case

income and expenses are translated at the dates of

the transactions); and

(c) the resulting exchange differences are recognised

in other comprehensive income and accumulated

in the exchange reserve.

(o) Financial guarantees issued, provision and contingencies

(i) Financial guarantees issued ‘
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the

issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to

reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)

for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor

fails to make payment when due in accordance with the

terms of a debt i

nstrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair

value of the guarantee (being the transaction price,

unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated)

is initially recog

nised as deferred income within trade

and other payables. Where consideration is received

or receivable for the issuance of the'guara_ntee, the

consideration is recognised in accordance with the

Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.

Where no such consideration is received or receivable,

an immediate expense is recognised in the consolidated

income statement on initial recognition of any deferred

income.

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )

RETBRREE (&)

(n) SN&BRE (&)

(i) EEFZ A

(i)

AEERTHARAZNRER
WARINIBREE - KA R
BARRAEZ I T 753 A5 B
L

(a) BHBMARMINICEE

LABRBBMRAERE R
ZEWERBE

(b) & Mas R FTHI 2 sk R P

HEERWE (BRI TH
EXRFZUAERMBER
M S AMERERY 2
HEE ERBRT K
FAER AN EXS
g):i R

(c) AUEMELAZERLZREE
Hitemkasr Rt
BT RE -

(o) FBEHHOMBHERF  BERIR

P& 9 B 1R

MBRERTDERFTA (DER

N BERZEA (HFEADE
BEBRBARGERRER TR
FEFRREHEARMRENE
X MEFE A E R
BH -
AR BB BT S AR - ZIER
DARE (RS ER  BRIEZ
AR EREE A RYER
A3 A BR 3K B L b 8 S R S Y
BN o A BITRIERET IR
B A AR E - A ERIRE
ERRZEEENAEERE -

=F

_%ﬁ%ﬁ%@iTWHW%@

RE  RENEREFET KA
B BN R SN & R R

2



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st March,

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(o) Financial guarantees issued, provision and contingencies
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in the consolidated income
statement over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised if and when it becomes probable that
the halder of the guarantee will call upon the Group
under the guarantee, and the amount of that claim on
the Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when there is a present
obligation, legal or constructive, as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable-estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed
regularly and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is
material, the amount of a provision is the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources

will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be .

measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the note on the consolidated financial
statements. When a change 'in the probability of an
outflow occurs so the outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision. : '
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &£ _F _FE=H =1+ —H IL4EE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(p) Revenue and other revenue

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performénce obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as_the
Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group performs;
or

e the Group’s p'erformance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 #&#%E =% “Z4E=H =+—H IL4E

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(p) Revenue and other revenue (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be-reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group a significant financial benefit for more
than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other revenue
recognition policies are as follows:

Provision of trading services

The Group provides broking and dealing services for
securities, futures, options contracts and precious metal.
Commission income, brokerage income and service fee is
recognised at a point in time on the execution date of the
trades at a certain percentage of the transaction value of
the trades executed. Management and handling income is
recognised when the transaction is executed and service is
completed.

Provision of assets management and advisory services
The Group provides asset management and advisory services
to customers. The Group recognise the revenue over time

or at a point in time when the services are rendered in .

accordance with contract terms. Asset management fee
income is charged at a fixed percentage per month of the net
asset value of the managed accounts under management of
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= & B B | x K O

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EASTHERME(E)
(Continued)

(p) Revenue and other revenue (Continued) (p) WEREMKE(E)

Provision of assets management and advisory services
(Continued) :

The Group is also entitled to a performance fee when there is
a positive performance for the relevant performance period.
The performance fee is recognised at the end of the relevant
performanée period, when there is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur once the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Property management fee :
The Group acts as a project coordinator for the property
developer.

Property management fee is recognised at a point in time
When the coordination service are completed. e
Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line "basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured under fair value
model. Upon application of HKFRS 16 on 1%t April 2019,
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income when they arise.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 #&#%E =% “Z4E=H =+—H IL4E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EASHEERHEE
(Continued)
(q) Leases (q) HE

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to lease office that have a lease term of 12 months or lease
from the commencement date and do not contain purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic
basis over the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits
Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments and initially measured at fair value.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 April, 2019)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified

as operating leases. Receipts or payments made under .

operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are credited or expensed in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 #& £ —
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (Continued)
(q) Leases (Continued)

As a lessor

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Receipts or payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are credited or expensed in the consolidated income
statement ona straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
és a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Related parties

(a)" A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control of the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or a parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st March,

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (Continued)
(r) Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of a same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit or employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it

is a part, provides key management personnel .

services to the Group or to a parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

"

N

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (Continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when achired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash

management.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amount of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
berformance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the typé or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which-are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majprity of these criteria.

Employees benefits

The Group participates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) which is
available to all employees. Contributions to the MPF Scheme
by the Group and its employees are calculated based on
a percentage of employees’ relevant income. The Group'’s
contributions to the fund are expensed as incurred and the
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administrated fund.

Payments to the Group’s MPF Scheme are charged to the
consolidated income statement as they fall due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &% & _R4E=H =+— H IL4EE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (Continued)
(u) Employees benefits (Continued)

(v)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities'
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion
in the cost of an asset.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and other assets to determine whether
there is any indication that these assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and other assets are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of

the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. .

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are
allocated to" the smallest group of cash-génerating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (Continued) 3. EASTHERME(E)

(v) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised.immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognise'd immediately in
profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. :

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &% & _R4E=H =+— H IL4EE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment loss on interest bearing receivables
from loan and margin financing

The Group makes impairment loss based on an assessment of
the recoverability of interest bearing receivables from loan and
margin financing. In determining whether impairment loss on
receivables is required, the Group takes into consideration the
current creditworthiness; the past collection history, age status
and likelihood of collection. Specific_allowance is only made for
receivables that are unlikely to be collected and is recognised on
the difference between the estimated future cash flow expected to
receive discounted using the original effective interest rate and its
carrying amount. If the financial conditions of customers or debtors
of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allowance may be required.

Estimated fair value of investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are determined at the
end of the reporting period by an independent professional
valuer. Valuations were made on the basis of either, investment
approach by capitalizing the net rental income receivable from the
existing tenancies and the reversionary rental income potentials,
and residual approach by referencing to its development potential
by deducting costs and developer’s profits from its estimated
completed development value. These methodologies are based
upon estimates of future results and a set of assumptions as
to income and expenses of the property and future economic
conditions.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity reserves

attributable to owners of the Company, comprising mainly issued
share capital, other reserves and retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= & B B | x K O

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &£ _F _FE=H =1+ —H IL4EE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Certain subsidiaries of the Group are regulated by the Securities

and Futures Commission (the “SFC”), and a subsidiary which
is a member of The Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society
(“CGSE"), they are required to comply with certain minimum capital
requirements according to the rules of the SFC and the CGSE.

The directors of the Company review the capitaI‘ structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
paymen{ of dividends and new share issues.

As at 31t March, 2020, the amount of total borrowings was
approximately HK$283,655,000 (2019: HK$2,769,000). The gearing
being equal to approximately 10.8% (2019: 0.1%) of the net assets
of approximately HK$2,633,091,000 (2019: HK$2,642,866,000).

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

EXEBEE (&)
AEBETHERAAXES RAEEKE
zZEe((EEg) L—HMBAR AR
BEEHH((2REBEH5]) CEEME
B RERAEAKBEESRERERS
BRZAAMEBTETREEARER

ARREEFLFEMELNERE - BHE
AABEEZRE—HHEAKA KT
R AEEREES I EZEEBREIR
BRETHRATEZEERERS

H#)283,655,0008 T (ZF— N F:
2,769,000 L) - BRELENAFE
= #)2,633,091,0008 70 (= — L4 -
2,642,866,000/4 7T) B14110.8% (ZF — A
£:01%) - : ‘

MBIADE
RBESHREBEMBTRZREENT -

2020 —EZEF
Financial assets MEEE :
Amortised
: cost
(In HK$'000) (W BHF T BE M) R R
Trade and other receivables and deposits B REMERFIBERIZS 1,066,695
Other assets Hi&E 3,400
Bank balances and cash RITEHRRR S 480,212
1,550,307
Financial liabilities k=N
Amortised
cost
(In HK$'000) (W BHFr BEMm) A
Borrowings A 283,655
Amounts due to related parties FE 1 BE Bk A T 3RIE 697
Amount due to ultimate holding company JE {5 Sx 4R 4 % A ] 5/ IR 188,839
Creditors and accrued expenses ERFERENER 118,942
592,133

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &% & _R4E=H =+— H IL4EE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Continued) 6. HBTIADEE)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBRERRZEIETEZEMENT ¢
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (4)
(Continued)
2019 _ S e
Financial assets BB EE
Amortised
cost
(In HK$'000) (BB TFTBED) T IRN
Trade and other receivables and deposits B 5 REMEWTIERIZS 791,035
Other assets Hith&E 5,400
Bank balances and cash RITEB RS 371,127
1,167,562
Financial liabilities B as
Amortised
cost
(In HK$°000) (LB F T B E7) B
Borrowings R 2,769
Amounts due to related parties [ BB A £5k0R 1,274
Amount due to ultimate holding company AP 2 UNCIE /S 166,795
Creditors and accrued expenses ENFIERENER 76,383
AT 220
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &£ _F _FE=H =1+ —H IL4EE

7/

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES
(a) Financial risk factors:

The Group’s major financial instruments comprise trade and
other receivables, deposits, other assets, bank balances and
cash, borrowings, amounts due to related parties, amount
due to ultimate holding company and creditors and accrued

expenses.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency
risk. The Group's overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.

(i) Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the
risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts
in full when due. Impairment provisions are provided
for losses that have been incurred by the end of the
reporting period, if any. The Group is responsible for
monitoring the amount of credit exposure to any financial

institution.

~ The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to interest
bearing receivables from loan and margin financing.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an

ongoing basis.

Financing business

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approval and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken for the recoverable amount. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual’s loan receivables at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. As at 31¢
March, 2020, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that provision for impairment of approximately
HK$152,140,000 (2019: HK$136,273,000) was
recognised on individual loans as credit impaired in
respect of these balances as the debtors were in the

process of liquidation.

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &% & _R4E=H =+— H IL4EE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 7.
POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors: (Continued)

BHEREERRRBE (&)

(a) BMBEBREZE: (&)

(i) Credit risk (Continued) (i) EEREE (&)
Financing business (Continued) B BEEE(E)
The Group manages and analyses the credit risk RIREREZEENNRIER REGEZ

for each of their new and existing clients before
standard payment terms and conditions are offered.
If there is no independent rating, the Group assesses
the credit quality of the customer based on the
customer’s financial position, past experience and other
factors. The Group holds collateral against receivables
and interest receivables in the form of mortgages over
residential properties located in Hong Kong. Individual
risk limits are set based on the value of collaterals
provided by customers and internal or external ratings in
accordance with limits set by the directors.

In determining the ECL of the Group’s interest bearing
receivables from loan and margin financing, the
management assessed the expected losses individually
by estimation based on general economic conditions of
the relevant industry in which the debtors operate, value
of any pledged assets, financial position of the debtors
and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in certain
individual customers.

As at 31%t March 2020, the largest principal receivable
from loans was approximately HK$189,903,000 (2019:
HK$67,000,000), which were approximately 21.69%
(2019: 10.87%) of the Group’s total principal receivables
from loans.

As at 31t March 2020, the largest interest bearing .

receivables from margin financing with carrying amount
of approximately HK$5,027,000 (2019: HK$7,109,000),
12.38%) of the
Group’s total interest bearing receivables from margin

were approximately 8.86% (2019:

financing.

The Group seeks to minimise its-risk by dealing with
counter parties which have good credit history.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= & B B | x K O

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 #& £ —

7.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 7.

POLICIES (Continued)

FFF=AET—HILEE

(a) Financial risk factors: (Continued) (a)
(i) Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables

Other receivables relating to accounts that are long

overdue with significant amounts, known insolvencies or

non-response to collection activities, they are assessed

_individually for impairment allowance.

Securities brokerage business

In order to manage the credit risk in the trade

receivables due from clients arising from business

dealing in securities,

individual credit evaluations are

performed on all clients. In addition, the Group reviews

the recoverable amount of each individual receivable

at the end of each reporting period to ensure that

adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable

amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company

consider that the credit risk is significantly reduced.

In respect of trade receivables from clearing houses,

credit risks are considered as low as the Group normally

enters into transactions with clearing houses which are

~ registered with regulatory bodies.

Other credit risks

In relation to the Group’s deposit with bank, the Group

limits its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits

with financial institution with high credit rating and no

recent ’history of default. The directors consider that the

Group’s credit risk on the bank deposits is low.

Quantitative information related to ECL assessment was

set out in note 20.

(ii) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining

sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability

of funding through an adequate amount of credit

facilities and the ability to close out market positions.

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= & B B ® K KM

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &% & _R4E=H =+— H IL4EE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 7. BBEBEEBERBUR(£)
POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors: (Continued) (@) BIBREBEE: (&)
(ii) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) TEEZEE (B
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRAMSINAEENTHEEE
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For ZEHEME - THIRKZHER
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been HEBFTEMBREBE RIS
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of the BHERPALEBZTEERE
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which ZBH - THRBERELE R
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes FMEZHERE -
both interest and principal cash flows.
Weighted Total
average Within One to Two to Over undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate oneyear  twoyears  fiveyears  fiveyears = cash flow amount
AR
(In HK$'000) (WEETTAEL)  METHRE  OR-F -E_F —ERE RENE ReREER KEE
2020 S £:3
Borrowings B3R 3.16% 32,674 30,173 90,523 173,043 326,413 283,655
Amounts due to BB AT
related parties - 697 697 697
Amount due to ultimate JEfS SRR
holding company DAIRA - 188,839 188,839 188,839
Creditors and ERNFHER
accrued expenses ERER . 118,942 118,942 118,942
341,152 30,173 90,523 173,043 634,891 592,133
2019 “E-nF :
Borrowings B 3.20% 2,769 2,769 2,769
Amounts due to JERTBMA T B
related parties - 1,274 1,274 1,274
Amount due to ultimate R AR
holding company ARTE - 166,795 166,795 166,795
Creditors and ERTER
accrued expenses &R - 76,383 76,383 | 76,383
247,221 247,221 247,221
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &£ _F _FE=H =1+ —H IL4EE

7.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors: (Continued)
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
, countérparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers
that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer

credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments are subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting beriod.

(iii) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the
Group’s borrowings from financial institution, other
loans, bank deposits, interest-bearing receivables from

loans and margin client receivables.

The majority of the borrowings bear interest at interest
rates with reference to the Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR”) whereas loans to customers bear
interest at interest rates with reference to the prime rate.
As the prime rate in Hong Kong basically changes in
line with the HIBOR, the Group’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates is minimal.

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

= a

For the year ended 31st M

OB ® R K

arch, 2020 &RZE - _F4E=H=1— HiL4EE

7. MEEBEEBERER(#)

(a) Financial risk factors: (Continued) (@) BIBREBEE: (&)
(iii) Interest rate risk (Continued) (iii) 7% 2 fz ()
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a TR RS B BR A A (4
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all Elx%@]ﬂ A M AR SR
other variables held constant, the Group’s profit before FE BERRBAATE) KA
tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings, ’EIF&“ HAXRGEBEREEEN
interest-bearing accounts receivables, loans and BRI E M BURETE o
advances) and the Group’s equity.
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in Increase/
(decrease) in profit before (decrease)
basis points taxation in equity
HEHZ MRBL AR A 2 BHz
(In HK$'000) (WEBTFTRENL) #,Gid) #m/CEL) Em/GBD)
2020 —E-EE
Hong Kong dollars BT 50 4,538 4,014
Hong Kong dollars BT (50) (4,538) (4,014)
2019 —NE
Hong Kong dollars BT 50 4,037 3,504
Hong Kong dollars BT (50) (4,037) (3,504)

(iv) Foreign currency risk

(iv) JME= S

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through transactions which gives rise to bank balances
and borrowings that are denominated in a foreign
currency, i.e. a currency other than functional currency
of the operations to which the transactions relate. The
currency giving rise to this risk is primarily United States
dollars (“US$").

Since US$ are pegged to HK$, the Group considers
risk of movements in exchange rates between the HK$
and US$ to be insignificant. Accordingly, no sensitivity

FEERZEERREERAB
RGN Z RV RITERRIE
F AR EMEB2ER
BN E M E R - BEEEE
BmEBEERET([ET])

ARESEET ([FEx)) #e -
AEERERRETRETTER

KRB RE - AL RBHA B

analysis with respect to USS$ is presented.

(b) Fair values:

(b)

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than

fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at amortised costs are approximate to their fair values
as at 31% March, 2020 and 2019.

Annual Report 2020 4E#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T & B OB | Xk K O

Fa (=)
For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &£ _F _FE=H =1+ —H IL4EE

8. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. WEk&EEIHEHN
(a) Revenue: (a) W&
2020 2019
(In HK$:000) (LUBBF T BEL) —B-Ef —E-h&
Revenue within the scope of HKFRS 15 &8 B 155 &5 X BI 551555
(Note (i)): FE A 2 Bz (HEEE)):
Commission and brokerage income from FH&EL 2 HE &
. securities broking RueBs WA 7,960 6,334
Commission and brokerage income from HIEELE 7 A& K&
futures broking BrRARA 554 636
Management and handling fees EREFEE 1,050 1,162
Commission for subscribing new shares  REFH R4S 95 5
Placement and underwriting commission  EL& & & 55H & 3,619 1,038
Investment management fee BREERS 2,075 2,242
Advisory fee AR = 233
Properties management fee MEERE 34,590 75,136
. Services fee in relation to precious metal HBEE4L B RKE 295 1226
50,238 87,012
Revenue outside the scope of HKFRS 15: &8 B 75 3 & 2 BI 55 1555
B E N2 Yz
Rental income HE W= 29,979 31,029
Interest income from i B WA TR
- margin clients -HFREP 6,468 11,933
- money lending -EXmE 82,753 57,019
- financial institutions and others Z IS R TR 5,393 4,59
124,593 104,577
174,831 11286589
Note: B aE
(i) Revenue within the scope of (i) B BRELRNFE155
HKFRS 15: HEM 2 W
Recognised at a point in time 1A {1 B ] B T R 50,238 87,012

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <sip @ |
£ AW B E XK S .

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &% & _R4E=H =+— H IL4EE

8. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 8.
(Continued)
(b) Operating segment information:
(i) Reportable operating segments (i) EHEELE

For management purposes, the Group is currently
organised into business units based on their products
and services_and has seven reportable operating
segments namely broking, financing, corporate finance,
assets management, property investment, precious

metal trading and investment holding.

Reportable operating segments are as follows:

=
REERFRE FEERBAKE
m R REHEABEB DR/
B2REEDH - AR AEL
M oERME BEER F
WERE BELBEBERREE

& -
SHREFHHMT

R4 BFRLEhHE

Broking Securities brokerage and
futures brokerage K4
Financing Securities margin financing B 7% BEAERRER
and money lending ' B
Corporate finance Corporate finance advisory, ERE EERMEERA
placing and underwriting fid & K B 88
Assets management Assets management for listed EEERE AEmkIELT
and unlisted companies and RAIREEE
high net worth individuals REZERE
BEER
Property investment Property rental, management BHEKXKE EHEHE T
and related business ENS G e
Precious metal trading  Precious metal trading E¢cBEE E2EBEE
Investment holding Share investments "EER i 1 E
An analysis of segment information of the Group on Zli;’%@?ﬁ%%%i&%‘ DHREZE
these reportable operating segments for the years PSR RN O | fEE s T

ended 31t March, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

S BLAEL ARERAN
mF -

2020 2019
(In HK$'000) (BB FrBEN) =i —T-NE .
Segment revenue a1l G
Broking w4 9,564 8,136
Financing % 94,614 73,146
Corporate finance TERE 3,714 1,276
Assets management BEER 2,075 2,242
Property investment FHERE 64,569 106,496
Precious metal trading E4BEE 295 293
Investment holding REZR - =

174,831

Annual Report 2020 4E#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= & B B | x K O

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 B E _F - RFE=H=+—HIL4EE
8. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. WHRNEBHINER (&
(Continued)
(b) Operating segment information: (Continued) (b) EEBAHER : (#)
(i) Reportable operating segments (Continued) () ZHEEZEH(E)
: 2020 2019
(In HK$'000) (LBETFLAEN) —T_EF —T-NE
Segment results nEEE
Broking . &a 76 (1,609)
Financing 8175 76,331 64,706
Corporate finance TERE 3,669 1,224
Assets management BEEE 383 634
Property investment | FHERE 58,656 100,347
Precious metal trading ETBER P (640) . (686)
Investment holding RERERK - -
) 138,475 164,616
J Net (decrease)/increase in fair value of REVERIAEZ
investment properties FORE) EE (44,000) 175,000
Gain on disposal of property, plant and. HEWR - KRk
equipment PITEE A 2 i A 1,455 7,047
Net impairment loss of financial HBEEBETRE
assets (31,770) (561,216)
Other revenue H A Iz 819 849
Share of results of an associate SRR %A (2,706) (5,708)
Profit before taxation PR %54 Al s A 62,273 290,588
Income tax expense TS X (15,872) (28,039)
Profit for the year E A A 46,401 262,549
Management monitors the results of the Group's EEERERERANEFZREE
operating segments separately for the purpose of DE 7 ELE - MEHE RS ER
making decisions about resources allocation and FRITERE - DHRIBIEEA
performance assessment. Segment performance is T2 R 20 F) (LABR B A % 7
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is =& 21 o

a measure of profit before tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <§

For the year ended 31st March,

8. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

,ﬁwi\

e M B ® K KB H

2020 BME_F_RE=H=1—HIRHEE

(b) Operating segment information: (Continued) (b). B\ ER* ﬂ'ﬁl (&)
(i) Reportable operating segments (Continued) (= 728 (48)
An analysis of segment information of the Group on @Zé:gf EER-E—HFE=
these reportable operating segments for the years A=1T—BLEEE  A&EFHZ
ended 31t March, 2020 and 2019 is as follows: ENEREED BN HER D
W
Segment Unallocated

assets/liabilities Interests in an associate  corporate assets/liabilities Consolidated

BE/BENE REENT 2 RS FHEL%EE /B8R &a

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
(In HK$'000) (EETTAEN) —B-%F CE-NF ZBZBf  “E-nE  ZBIBf . CE-AE ZBIRf ZENE
Assets BE
Bioking i 14632 111,819 - 2 = - mMeR 111819
Financing g 939,557 765,847 = - - - | 933857 765847
Corporate finance PERE - - - - - - - -
Assets management BEER 1,065 4,238 - = - = 1,065 4238
Property investment FHERE 1,710,826 1,724,908 34,029 39,265 - - 1,744,855 1,764,173
Precious metal trading REBEE 129,267 129,561 - - - = 129,267 129,561
Investment holding RABR 132011 132011 - S = SR 132011
Inter-segmen elimination 7 EEE (3,340) (8,106) - - = . (3:340) (8,106)
Unallocated AR = 7 = = 156,192 4,085 156,192 4,085
Consolidated A 3048018 2860278 34,029 39265 156,192 4085 3238209 2903628
Liabilities &f
Broking i 100,549 72,449 - = - - 100549 72,449
Financing g 8,124 5,632 - = - = 8,124 5,632
Corporate finance tERE - - - - - = - -
Assets management BEER 69 69 - - - - 69 69
Property investment FHERE 205,933 172,638 = - - - 205,933 172,638 +
Precious metal trading ELBEE 6,391 3,028 - - - = 6,391 3,028
Investment holding RERR 73 3,860 - - - - 73 3,860
Inter-segment elimnation S B AH (3,340) (8,106) - - - R (3,340) (8,106)
Unallocated AR = A = = 287,349 11,192 287,349 11,192
Consolidated B4 37,799 249570 - - 281,39 1192 605,148 260762
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= & B B | x K O

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

8. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. WRKEEDIER (&
(Continued) ,
(b) Operating segment information: (Continued) (b) EEDPHER : ()
(i) Reportable operating segments (Continued) () ZHEEZSZ(E)
Provision of

impairment loss on trade

Capital expenditure Depreciation receivables - net Finance cost
ESRUFHERERE :
U i -RE REHA

: 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

(I HK$000) (HERTLREL) “B-%E CZ-nE ZBCBE OCEZ-NF CBIEZE E-NE ZBCBE O ZENf
 Other segment information ~ &5 F&#

Broking &g 64 49 119 121 - o - -

Financing B : B - - - om0 51216 - 31

Corporate finance tEHE - - B - - - 4 - =

Assets management BEER - = - - - = - =

Property investment FHERE - - 2 2 - - - -

) Precious metal trading S2EEE - - 1 1 - - 1 15

- Investment holding B - = - - - S - -

Inter-segment elimination AEREH - = - - - = - -

Unallocated 7R - - - - - - 9,206 -

Consolidated A 64 49 141 149 31,770 *51,216 9,355 185
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A M B ® K B

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &% & _R4E=H =+— H IL4EE

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 8.
(Continued)
(b) Operating segment information: (Continued)
(ii) Geographical information
The Group’s operations are principally located in Hong
Kong, Macau and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). The Group’s administration is carried out in
Hong Kong.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue from external customers by geographical
market and analysis of non-current assets by the
geographical location in which assets are located other

(b), EESBEN : (&
(i) HEEH
AEBZEETBUAESE R
Pk ARKEME ([FEAR
EME]) o AEBZITBHARE
LT © :

TRERAEERIE TS 25
HEPREDI N RIEZEEME
WEFERBHEEDS (BHE
WSR R A A E RBEER IR

than trade receivables, other assets and deferred tax HRN) o
assets.
Revenue from external
customers Non-current assets
REMBEF 2 ' FRBEE

2020 2019 2020 2019
(In HK$'000) (LB TTREN) Z—EZFF —Z-NF ZEZBF —T-NF
Hong Kong BB 142,414 157,626 2,465 2,521
Macau Pk 32,417 33,963 1,642,563 1,686,584
The PRC AR EME - - 34,029 39,265

174,831

191,689 1,679,057 = 1,728,370
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= & B B | x K O

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

8. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 8.
(Continued)
(b) Operating segment information: (Continued)
(iii) Information about major customers
The Group’s five largest customers accounted for
in aggregate approximately 33% (2019: 24%) of the
Group’s revenue.

. The revenue from customers individually contributing
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for the
respective reporting periods are as follow:

(b) EENHBER : (F)
(i) TEEFEH
AEBRARFARGER K
#133% (ZF—JLF : 24%) °

RBEHA - E-FPKHAR
EELKER10%A EMT

2020 2019
(In HK$'000) (LUBBTF T BED) —E-EF —EhE
Customer A EPA
— Contributed from financing — KB E
segment 17,970 =
* Revenue did not contribute 10% of the total revenue of X i&% B ﬁqﬂ&z!v XEBE—&
the Group for the respective reporting period. P A EEAUE10%A
- Ee
9. NET IMPAIRMENT LOSS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 9. UHKEEBEFHE
2020 2019
(In HK$°000) (LB F T BEfr) —E-EE ek
Impairment loss, net of reversal, A TR Z R EEE
recogniséd in respect of: (B E) :
Trade and other receivables and deposits & 5 & E B U F I8 Mg & 31,770 51,216
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BERAK
2020 2019
(In HK$'000) (BB T T B E ) el et
Interest on bank borrowing and overdrafts, $R1TfE KiE S Fll 855 -
repayable on demand EEKEE 9,206 32
Interest on other borrowing, wholly HMEFMERZ - RAEA
repayable within five years BHEE 149 154
9,355 186

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= 8

For the year ended 31st March,

OB ® R K

2020 BE R -BRE=SH =1 —HILGERE

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 1. BHIRF
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging and B EDENE B R AT &IE :
crediting the following:
, 2020 2019

(In HK$'000) (MBS F T 5 El7) —E-EF —T-NE
Charging: B -
Auditors’ remuneration ZERI B 2

— Current year - REE 737 632

— Underprovision in prior year -AEEBEIE - 26
Staff cost (including directors’ emolument) B ITAA (BEEEHH)

- Salaries, bonus and other benefits -5 EAREMRERN 15,140 15,009

- Contributions to retirement schemes - RIRETELZ 5K 455 472
Depreciation e 141 149
Operating leases rentals in respect of HEMEZREHER S

rented premises : - 1,216
Expenses relating to short-term leases MEMERBER 1,216 -
Crediting: BEtA
Rental income from operating lease REMERERARXH -

less outgoings: gross rental income: HEWABEE « 29,979,000 T

HK$29,979,000 (2019: HK$31,029,000) (ZZ— N4 : 31,029,000/ 7T) 27,491 28,174
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= & B B | x K O

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 B E _F - RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

12, DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

12. ESENEREEENS

REMUNERATION
(a) Directors’ emolument (a) EZEM=2
The remuneration of every director for the years ended 31¢ BEEREBEE T _ZEER TN
March, 2020 and 2019 are as follows; F=A=t+—HIEFEZME M
s
Basic
salaries,
housing
benefits, Discretionary
other bonuses
allowances and/or
and  Retirement performance-
benefits benefits related
Fees inKkind contributions bonuses Total
ExHe .
EEREAN BERA
ERLR B R/
(In HK$'000) (LS T BENL) e BENAE B gERA #ct
For the year ended 31 March, 2020 BZ-Z=-Z%
ZAZt-HLEE
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
Mr. Ip Man Tin, David EERLE 50 - - - 50
Dr. Sze Ping Fat AR 50 - - - 50
Executive directors: HTEE .
Ms. Chéng Wai Ling, Annie BER/ME - 542 22 19 583
Mr. Cheng Wai Lun, Andrew BEmTE - 256 13 19 288
Mr. Mok Kwai Hang BRERE - 1,470 - 61 1,531
Independent non-executive directors: BV EHTEE .
Mr. Chan Chung Yee, Alan BREfE 50 - - - 50
Mr. Poon Kai Tik BRBEE 50 - - - 50
Mr. Hui Man Ho, lvan AL 50 - - - 50
250 2,268 35 99 2,652

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= 8

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &% & _R4E=H =+— H IL4EE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

12. EERSREERENE (&)

(a) Directors’ emolument (Continued) (a) ESM< (&)
Basic
salaries,
housing
benefits, Discretionary
other bonuses
allowances andfor
and Retirement  performance-
" benefits benefits related
Fees ~  inkind contributions bonuses ¢ Total
B9
FERM BB
B8R RIK R/ %
(In HK§ 000) LARTLAEEL) Be  EREE  RRBR s it
For the year ended 31 March, 2019 HZE-Z—1&
SA=t-RILER
Non-executive directors: FHTEE:
Mr. Ip Man Tin, David ERRLE 50 - - - 50
Dr. Sze Ping Fat HEREBT 50 - = - 50
Executive directors: HITEE :
Ms. Cheng Wai Ling, Annie BERNA - 519 22 19 560
Mr. Cheng Wai Lun, Andrew BEfREE - 270 14 £si9 303
Mr. Mok Kwai Hang REEEE = 1,439 - 123 1,562
Independent non-executive directors: BV FHTEE -
Mr. Chan Chung Yee, Alan BREEE 50 - - - 50
Mr. Poon Kai Tik ARELE 50 - - - 50
Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan IR E 50 = L = 50
250 2,228 36 161 ' 2,675

During the years ended 31t March, 2020 and 2019, no

emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as °

an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss for office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= & B B | x K O

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &£ _F _FE=H =1+ —H IL4EE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 12. EENSRAEEEMNE (&)

REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Details of emoluments of the five highest paid individuals (b)
(excluding directors of the Company) are:
For the year ended 31 March, 2020, one (2019: one) of the
five highest paid individuals was executive director of the
Company, whose emoluments are included in note 12(a).

Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining
four (2019: four) highest paid-employees who are neither a
director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

AEBEFMAL (REFEELAATZ
EE)2MEFHE
R-B_ZF=A=Z+—HIFE
IEERTMATER R (ZE—1
F—R)ARRARTES  HEZ
B4 B #HAKE12a) o

EBOE (ZF-NF : OR)BER
AREEMFTRER RS FHHE
BzHmMeFEmT

2020 2019

(In HK$'000) . (BB TFTREN) —E_EF ZE-NE

Basic salaries N 2,686 2,679

Retirement benefits contributions BRI F R 72 72
Discretionary bonuses and/or BIBIEAT &SR RAEAT

performance-related bonuses’ - 98 158

2,856 2,909

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

TERARESEHMEN THED
BT MATHABNOT :

Nil to'HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000/% 7T

During the years ended 31t March, 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss for office.

2020 2019
—B-2F “EAF
4 4

HE-_Z-_ZFER-F-NF=H
=t+—HLFE AEETRARS
R MATEINETME - EAR
SIEEMB MBS EE 2 RE)K
TERBERA(E

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BREF
The basic earnings per share is based on the Group’s profit EREREMNTIBERARES AEHL
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately NE B R A 447,738,000 L (ZE— N,
HK$47,738,000 (2019: HK$254,624,000) and the number of F : 254,624,000 L) R RNFE B EIT
2,682,316,758 (2019: 2,682,316,758) ordinary shares in issue T Af%2,682,316,758M (Z T — L F :
during the year. ' 2,682,316,758/% ) 51 & o :
The basis earnings and diluted earnings per share are the same HRTEEBESREYER G FRER
as the Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares for both =~ 3 7| 845 JR 8 5% 3% F AR %5 o
years.

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )
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(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A M B ® K B

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &% & _R4E=H =+— H IL4EE

INCOME TAX EXPENSES AND DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Income tax expenses in the consolidated income
statement represents:

14, IEHAXRELHEEE
(a) HEWHERZFMBHAXE !

2020 2019

(In HK$'000) (LB T L BE7) —T-EF ZE-NE
Hong Kong profits tax BEREH

— current year - AEE 17,189 19,961

— under/(over) provision in prior year -RIFETR/ (#B%) &E 24 (120)

Deferred taxation — note 14(d) EIER A — KT 5E14(d) (1,341) 4,953

15,872 24,794

Overseas tax paid BREMEIE = 18,248

15,872 28,039

On 21%t March, 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28" March, 2018
and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of the profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%.

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% of the
assessable profit for the years ended 315t March 2020 and
2019.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions in which the Group

operates is calculated on the estimated assessable profits for
the year at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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FERB(ZE—LERE (B (F
7 5) BRIER) ([EHER]) 5 A
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FZAZ+NBEZZENR TRZ
BRIEE®R BREFESHMRS - &
EREEE LIRS 5% R 3 H
| &2,000,0008 T4 A B H > L
1£16.5% /) % 2 3 i 52,000,000
TR G MBI - TRHEFEHM
FHBRNEEE BN G BER
16.5%H) & — B KM N FIIE o

ﬁ%:%:%ﬁ&:%*ﬁiiﬂ
ZT—HLEFE  BNExEHEER
Bim A A 12% AR 51

AEBEERMAZEREENELL .

B T3 A (E 5t FE RR B A9 & FIAR B AR 7R
EERFERZHEGE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= & B B | x K O

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 B E _F - RFE=H=+—HIL4EE
14, INCOME TAX EXPENSES AND DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 14, FIEHAXIREEREEE (&)
(Continued)
(c) Income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the (c) AFEEMBHAXAEGE AR Z
profit before taxation per the consolidated income statement BRI AR A EROT
as follows:
2020 2019
(In HK$'000) (LB T B ) —Z-ZF 2R NE
Profit before taxation B AR 62,273 290,588
Tax at the applicable income tax rate of KRR EEERMERZ
respective tax jurisdictions Frifi s 11,910 39,826
Tax effect of net decrease/(increase) BREMERARBZFERE/
in fair value of investment properties (BE)NNBZE 5,280 (21,000)
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue RERRZMENTIE T & (3,038) (4,879)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TENRZATHBRBTRE i . -
Tax effect of previously unrecognised Z AR ATER G R E 2R
temporary difference RBTE - 3,245
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary AERNEREEEZENTETE :
" differences 1,300 1,994
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FERREEBENRBYE 1,272 > 9,697
Utilisation of tax losses previously not AT RIERT AR
recognised : (658) (463)
Under/(over) provision in prior year DEEERR/ (BF) #iE 24 (120)
Tax reduction IR (225) (261)
Income tax expenses FriSfiF X 15,872 28,039
(d) Deferred tax assets: (d) ELEHREEE:
Provision
for impairment
loss on trade  Accelerated
receivables depreciation Total
ESEW
RIER A
(In HK$'000) (BT TREN) BiEEE METE @5t
At 1 April, 2018 R=Z—\EMA—H (6,200) (4) (6,204)
Deferred tax charged to R IEHGR B
profit or loss * 4949 . 4 4,953
At 31 March, 2019 B e HeET —F (1,251) - (1,251)
Deferred tax credited to EER B AR
profit or loss s (1,341) - (1,341)
At 31 March, 2020 N R RSN =RSH (2,592) - (2,592)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unutilised
tax losses of approximately HK$68,805,000 (2019:
HK$65,085,000) available for offsetting against future taxable
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future taxable profits. The tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

RBREKRE - AEEH A 435S
ARERZEREFN 2 ADAHRLEE
18 4968,805,000/8 L (T — AL & :
65,085,000/87C) ° B A BETEAI AR 2R
FEUGERUEF 2 B - R ERERE
ERBEE - MBI ERRLE -

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )
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16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8 B % & % W =

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 #

,ﬁwi\

@R = I = — HLAE

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND 15. ERARERE
2020 2019
(In HK$'000) (LB F T BE) —ZE_ZF —ZT—NE
Final dividend proposed of HK1.0 cent BRERBRE — BRI BR1.04/L
" (ZENF  2.08U) 26,823 53,646

(2019: HK2.0 cents) per ordinary share

The amount of the proposed final dividend for the year ended 31
March, 2020 of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share will be payable in
cash and is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16.

Rexft

BE_F-_RE-A=+-HLFEZE
H RIS ABREBE.0EN - LN
ﬁéﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁZh%@ik
g LRERRIER  HAER

M BBERZE
Leasehold  Furniture,
land and fixtures and Motor
buildings  equipment vehicles Total
HEtw KA £E
(In HK$'000) (OB Fr /%) REF eI AE B
Net carrying amount as at 1% April, 2018 R-Z—\ENA-HZ
(Note(1)) BREFE (M) 987 303 - 1,290
Additions NE - 49 - 49
Disposal HE (125) L = (125)
Depreciation e (20) (129) = (149)
Net carrying amount as at 31 March, =il e E=r=lE 2
2019 EEFE 842 223 h 1,065
At 31 March, 2019 “E-NF=R=1-H _
Cost B AR 1,162 6,426 1,381 8,969
Accumulated depreciation 2BEME (320) (6,203) (1,381) (7,904)
Net carrying amount REFE 842 223 S s 1065
Net carrying amount as at R-ZZE-hENA—-HZ
1st April, 2019 IR A 842 223 - 1,065
Additions RE - 64 - 64
Disposal HE - - - -*
Depreciation e (20) (121) - (141)
Net carrying amount as at R-ZZB-ZE=A=t-HZ ;
31st March, 2020 REFE 822 166 - 988
At 315t March, 2020 R-ZZ-ZF=A=+-H
Cost KA 1,162 6,490 1,381 9,033
Accumulated depreciation ZREME (340) (6,324) (1,381) (8,045)
Net carrying amount REFE 822 166 - 988

* The balance represents an amount less than HK$1,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= & B B | x K O

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 16. ¥ - HERFRE ()
Notes: B e
(i)  The analysis of net book value as at 1t April, 2018 was as follows: (i) RZF-—NFRA—BZEEFEITHN
i
Leasehold Furniture,
land and fixtures and Motor -
buildings equipment vehicles Total
\ HELH KA -HEBE
(In HK$'000) S R ) EEF KtE AE |88
Cost BN 1,287 &&) 7 1,381 9,045
Accumulated depreciation ZRIEITE (300) (6,074) (1,381) (7,755)
Net carrying amount BRHEFE 987 303 = 1,290
(i)  The total cost of property, plant and equipment disposed during the (||) ﬁiﬁf‘&j'ﬁﬁﬂ% ﬁ&%&%&(ﬁ%@ﬁi$%’\]

year was approximately HK$4 (2019: HK$ 125,000).

(iii) The leasehold land and buildings are situated in Macau and Hong
Kong. The Group is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire these property interests. The leasehold land
components of these owned properties are presen.ted separately only
if the payments made can be allocated reliably.

125,000/ ¢T) °

(i) HELWEETUINEFREE KEHE
RREYEER (BRHERBEE L) MG
fhsE=E - Eféﬂ‘ffizhlﬁtxuﬁlﬁﬁéiib?%%
R o RN R FURRESR] 520 LAY
BT EZ%E%%%E’J%EEiiME&%B
DA A EBH R

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. BEY

2020 2019
(In HK$'000) (BB F L BEN) —Z-ZF —T-NF

Fair value: - DRE
At 15t April . D 1,686,000 1,511,000
Net (decrease)/increase in fair value DREZF (/DZTE)/ (44,000) 175,000

recognised in the consolidated BEERGRS WER

income statement R

At 315t March R=R=+—H 1,642,000 1,686,000

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases.

The Group has pledged certain of its investment properties with
aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$1,434,000,000
(2019: HK$1,462,000,000) to a bank to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group.

ARBAE=HETABERANE -

AEBEERETREME T —BBITE
AAREERE-—RETREZERR
H 48 R (E 4 A1,434,000,0008 7 (= F
— V% : 1,462,000,000 B TT) °

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 % _F " R4FE=H =+—H IL4EE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(i)

(if)

17. RENZE (&)

Fair value hierarchy (i) DAABEER
The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s L NREVNNAEBRKEEEERNRSE
investment properties measured at the end of the reporting HRBES S BREELFI13EA
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level SEBEFEMRAE N Z=A2AEBE
fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value EW/H o ARABEFSEAEEZK
Measurement. EME -
Fair value measurement
NARBESERRER
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(In HK$'000) (L EETF T BEN) ARE =1 == £=E
Recurring fair value measurement £EMAREHNE
2020 “ECEE
Investment properties REME
- Commercial - Macau - BH-RH 1,434,000 - - 1,434,000
- Residential - Macau - Iz -2 208,000 - - 208,000
1,642,000 - - 1,642,000
2019 —Z-NEF
Investment properties REME
- Commercial - Macau - BA-RM 1,462,000 - - 1,462,000
— Residential - Macau - FE-RM 224,000 - = 224,000
1,686,000 - - -1,686,000
During the years ended 31t March, 2020 and 2019, there HE_Z-_EFEK_ZF—NF=H
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers =t+—HIEFEER F—EBHE-E
into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise ZEW R EER  EAZFHERF
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of B AEBIHEENRESFK
the reporting period in which they occur. BRANBESR 2 HMEE 28
Valuation process (i) FHBE

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31¢
March, 2020 and 31t March, 2019 have been arrived at
on the basis of a valuation carried out at that date by LCH
(Asia-Pacific) Surveyors-Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group.
Investment properties were valued on open market basis.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &£ _F _FE=H =1+ —H IL4EE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(iii) Valuation methodologies
Investment properties valuation was determined using the
following approaches:

(a)

Income capitalisation approach

In the valuation, the market rentals of all lettable units
of the properties are assessed by reference to the
rentals achieved in the lettable units as well as other

' lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood.

The capitalisation rate adopted is made by reference
to the yield rates observed by the valuers for the
similar properties in the locality and adjusted based
on the valuers’ knowledge of the factors specific to the
respective properties. The most significant unobservable
inputs into this valuation approach are monthly market
rent and the capitalisation rate.

Residual approach

The residual approach is valued by referencing to
its development potential by deducting costs and
developer’s profits from its estimated completed
development value. It relies upon a series of
assumptions made by the valuers which produce an
arithmetical calculation of the expected current sale
value as at the valuation date of the property being

* developed or held for development or redevelopment. A

range of values may be attributable to the subject land
depending upon the assumption mode.

In estimating the fair value of the investmerit properties,
the highest and best use of the properties is their current
use.

17. REWE (&
(i) fHERE
HEEMERALT FERE

(a)

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March,

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(iv) Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the

17. REME (&)
(iv) ATAREDEGHEMFRAZGEES

2020 BRE B _RE=H=+— HIL4ERE

key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:  EREZPABEEIHME
Significant Range
Valuation unobservable &
techniques inputs 2020 2019
HER % BEATAERRDABE —E-EF T ZE-NE
Commercial properties  Income capitalisation approach
ELik/ES WA E &A%
- shop Capitalisation rate 1.5-2.5% 1.2-2.2%
— A ER = 1.5-2.5% 1.2-2.2%
Monthly rental
(HK$/square foot/month) 32-49 32-71
FBAMAS
(B%,/FHER/R) 32-49 32-71
Adjusted market price
(HK$/square foot) 16,297-26,490 10,367-41,106
HEBERTISER
(B%/FHR) 16,297-26,490 10,367-41,106
— carparking Capitalisation rate 1.6-2.1% 1.9-29%
— Bfr BERb = 1.6-2.1% 1.9-2.9%
Monthly rental
(HK$/unit/month) 2,781-2,884 2,987-3,090
FAMAS :
(B¥ 8B/ A) 2,781-2,884 2,987-3,090
Adjusted market price - "
(HK$'000/unit) 1,800-2,940 1,800-3,900
HEBRTISER
(BT, Bh) 1,800-2,940 1,800-3,900

Discount rate
IS

Residential development Residual approach
FEHR FIErE

Budgeted construction
cost to be incurred
(HK$/square foot)
HREBEKAR
(B%/FHR)

Anticipated construction profit
REREN

Annual Report 2020 4E#

5.25% per annum

| EF=5.25%

22,878
22,878

15% on cost
A HI15%

5% per annum

FF|E5% -

22,850
22,850

15% on cost
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(iv) Below isra summary of the valuation techniques used and the

17. REME (&
(iv) ATAREMEGHERFRBZGEES

key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: (Continued)

Capitalisation rate is the rate taking into account the
capitalisation of potential rental income, nature of the
property and prevailing market conditions. Market rent per
square foot is the market rent taking into account the direct
comparablé market transactions to the related properties.

The fair value measurements are negatively correlated to the
capitalisation rate, while positively correlated to the market
rent per square foot.

Residual method of valuation which is commonly used in
valuing development sites by — establishing the market
value of the properties on an “as-if” completed basis with
appropriate deduction on land and construction costs,
brofessional fees, contingency, marketing and legal cost,
and interest payments to be incurred as well as anticipated
developer's profits.

Relationships of unobservable inputs to fair value are as
follows:

° The higher cabitalisation rate, the lower fair value:

*  The higher monthly rental, the higher fair value;

e The higher adjusted market price, the higher fair value;

e The higher budgeted construction cost to be incurred,
the lower fair value; and

e  The higher anticipated construction profit, the higher fair
value.

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )
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18.

19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= 8

For the year ended 31st March,

M OB W

2020 HE_ZF

x® M &

S UESET

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B EE
Intangible assets represent the trading rights in the Stock BEREERBIMNEEHRERSIMER
Exchange and the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited. NEZRGTE °
, 2020 2019
(In HK$'000) (BB T TRE ) —E-BE —T-NE
Cost at 15t April, and 31t March, net of REA—BR=ZA=+—HZKA
accumulated amortisation 2ET BN A FE 2,040 2,040
Cost (gross carrying amount) KA (BREAE) 3,400 3,400
Accumulated amortisation B i (1,360) (1,360)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,040 2,040
INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. REE QT 2%
2020 2019
(In HK$'000) (LB T r BE ) —_T_EF ZE-NE
Unlisted investment, at cost FELEMEE KA 73,691 73,691
Share of post-acquisition profits less losses FE{EUREE 4 1% B1E1£ % (34,063) (31,357)
Exchange differences arising on translation #BE &I EEELZ[EHZHE
of foreign operations (5,599) (3,069)
34,029 39,265
The Group’s interest in its principal associate which is unlisted, AREBREFEEMETEBE NG 2ER=N
was as follows: T+
Percentage of
effective interest
Particulars of Place of attributable Principal
Name of associate issued shares held incorporation to the Group activities
BENRZH BFREBTRAFE Ak 3L it 2 4‘%!;[‘%3%}%@ TEXH
Quan Zhou Meiyu Limited Registered capital The PRC - 30% Property investment
RMB60,000,000 ¢
RMEHREZBRRA dEAARE hEARLME 30% EHERE
60,000,000
The interest in associate is held in trust by a director of the iR /NI e /N u%%&%ﬂ:%
Company on behalf of a subsidiary of the Group. B ARIAEEARFTE -

Annual Report 2020 4E#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 B E _F - RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

19, INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 19. REERT 2% (&)
Summarised (financial information of the material associate, BEAZHERNR S RREEZHE
adjusted for any difference in accounting policies, and reconciled R BREREBELAENREN B
to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements, SEHRBOT :

are disclosed below:

Quan Zhou Meiyu Limited
RMNERELERAR

2020 2019

(In HK$'000) (BOBBFr B 7) —ZT-TF —E-NEF
Summarised statement of financial BRI REE

position
Current assets RBEE 697,405 713,934
Non-current assets FREBEE 48,417 53,315
Current liabilities mEBE (632,392) (636,365)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE e - b =
Equity HEm 113,430 130,884
Summarised statement of 2HRBERBE

comprehensive income
Revenue Wz - -
Loss after tax Briiiz B8 (9,021) (19,025)
Other comprehensive loss Hin 2 HEEE (8,433) (9,834)
Total comprehensive loss ZHEBEESE (17,454) (28,859)
Dividend received from associate BEATIZRE = -
Reconciled to the Group’s interest REBEGHEAT

in the associate R 2 $ R
Net assets of the associate BE AR EEFE 113,430 130,884
Group’s effective interest REEZ BN ER 30% 30%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate N5 B E(FEE & A B EEFE 34,029 39,265
Carrying amount in the consolidated R MK < BREE

financial statements i 34,029 39,265

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #4EM4G WA )



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March,

2020 RE_F-FF=A=1+—HILHRE

approximately HK$601,265,000 (2019: HK$460,639,000) are secured
by the collateral.

Annual Report 2020 4E#

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 20. REMERSE ke RANTE
PREPAYMENTS
2020 2019
(In HK$000) R ) —E-EF —NE
Amounts receivable arising from CAREBESREER
the ordinary course of business of
dealing in securities and options:
- Cash clients -BEEF 14,450 16,440
— The SEHK Options Clearing House - B IR EE AR AR
Limited 2 2
- Hong Kong Securities Clearing - BRPREEERR
Company Limited 1,516 11,647
Amounts receivable arising from BEEBHIEEHNRHREIFIE
the ordinary course of business of
dealing in futures contracts:
— Clearing house — EEAm 982 1,180
Amounts receivable arising from the AEEB RHESFFRAE
ordinary course of business of provision of ~ EUFIE :
securities margin financing:
— Clients (Note (i)) — 5P () 132,135 128,122
Amounts receivable arising from H %%WZTmﬁ\,\i%
the ordinary course of business R 5 EWGRY
dealing in precious metal:
- Clients - %P 323 267
- CGSE - SREBEH% 3 8
Interest-bearing receivables from loans BB 7 2 e E R
(Note (ii)) (B &E(i)) 954,821 654,869
Trade receivables B 2 MR 6 36
Other receivables H h e U BR 5K 153,919 37988
1,258,157 950,499
Less: Impairment loss on trade and w BHREKFUREEE
loan receivables (192,096) (160,326)
: 1,066,061 790,173
Deposits and prepayments Ze RIEMNFKE 2,870 3,065
1,068,931 793,238
Portion classified as non-current assets DERIERDEERD (122,105) (97,999)
Portion classified as current assets DEAERBEELH 946,826 695,239
Notes: Bex
() Margin client receivables after the impairment loss amounted to () ERFREFERRBREBEEND
approximately HK$56,740,000 (2019: HK$57,440,000) are repayable 56,740,000/ 7t (ZZ — 1.5 : 57,440,000
on demand, bearing interest at market rate and secured by clients’ BL) BARBAREE  FERMGH X
securities listed on the Stock Exchange with a total market value BY - RARPRERFI LM ESE
of approximately HK$211,552,000 as at 31t March, 2020 (2019: ER R-T-_TF=R=+—H#EM
HK$258,444,000). 18 & 41211,5652,0008 T (ZF— N F
258,444,000/ 7T) °
(i) Loan receivables after the impairment loss amounted to (i) &R ERBEL601,265,000/% T (=

ZT—Hh
F 460639000%%)1§ZFEHQ§$K #
ﬁuuf’ﬂfﬁﬁ°
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)
The settlement terms of cash and securities margin financing
clients arising from the business of dealing in securities are two
days after trade date, and of trade receivable arising from the
business of dealing in futures contracts are one day after trade
date. No aging analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of the
executive directors of the Company, the aging aﬁalysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of this business.

The movements in the impairment loss on trade receivables during
the year, including both specific and collective loss components,
are as follows:

20.

ESNRHEMEKHKIE - BERANRE
(%)
KEBFEBEXBRELNRE MBS
RBEEPEUGANZ 5 AMKRKER
KERERHNRFIEBMELNE SR
FTEANRRHH-RREE - ARFMTE
ERE - TURZBYGRRRERE DT
RB %R DT L R BIEE L TR H#
BIMEME -

RAFEE SRR RERE - 2E 5
%H&ELHEW Z“EWT.

Lifetime ECL
Lifetime ECL credit-
not credit- impaired
12m ECL impaired (Note) Total
HHEE BHEE :
T=ERPEH BRELR BEREEENE
(In HK$°000) (LB ST TR E ) FEEBE EERE (P =E) Bt
At 1% April, 2018 RZZE—N\FHA—
= 7,006 35,000 67,255 109,261
Transfer of impairment loss on  HFRE & & KRB B L
margin financing iz - (35,000) 35,000 -
Recovery of debts on interest Ut} A 7| B M E
bearing loan receivables R ETS = = (54) (54)
Impairment loss on margin FREEREREL -
financing 5,008 - 28,103 33,106,
Impairment. loss on interest WA S R E SR .
bearing loan receivables BEX 2,156 9,888 6,120 18,164
Uncollectible ameunt written off &+ 4 £& % U [l £ & 58 - - (151) (151)
At 31 March, 2019 R-ZE-nF=H
=18 14,165 9,888 136,273 160,326
Recovery of debts on interest Y[l B F B 57 &
bearing margin financing HENES (468) = (3,417) (3,885)
Recovery of debts on interest Y@ fft 5 7l B fE W & ;
bearing loan receivables HEES - (2:120) % 4 (42) (2,162)
Impairment loss on margin FRBETRERXL
financing 8,598 - - 8,598
Impairment loss on interest P ] 2 FE M B SR
bearing loan receivables EREES _ = 9,893 19,326 29,219
At 31%t March, 2020 A I T e = e
: =5 E 22,295 17,661 152,140 192,096

Note: The credit impaired receivables related to customers that were in
the process of. liquidation and/or management assessed that the
receivables are unlikely to be recovered.

st - EEEREMEKRRIERECET
BRPHER R,/ HE R EEREZ
JEUR R AT REME IR -

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )



20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 20.

21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= & B B ® K KM

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31st March,

Receivables that were past due related to a number of
independent customers and were reviewed by the directors with
impairment losses of approximately HK$192,096,000 made at 31
March, 2020 (2019: HK$160,326,000). Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no further
impairment loss is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the

balances are considered fully recoverable.

The ageing analysis of trade and other receivables not impaired is

2020 BE R -BRE=SH =1 —HILGERE

EZREMERKHKIE  ZERANNE

(&

ERHEZEREFIDZEBIRE K5
EHERZEERAN B TFE=A=1—
B 1 8 B B 5 49192,096,0008 7T (=
— L% : 160,326,0008 7T) ° R IEHEL
B ARREERR  UTUERZEHER
BIELRERE EBRAEEEEETES
AE(L  MEZELERDFEE BT ZE8URE -

H 5 R EA BRI B IR E < Bk ik T

as follows: mR
2020 2019
(In HK$'000) (LB F 55 7) —E-EF —E-NE
Neither past due nor impaired REE RARRE 709,701 708,419
Past due: EiaH
Less than 1 month past due BHEAR—EA 4,982 10,447
1 to 3 months past due BH—Z==EA 8,093 3,769
3 months to 1 year past due BBA=EAZE—5F 226,557 42,074
Over 1 year past due BERB—F 116,728 25,464
356,360 81,754
1,066,061 790,173
OTHER ASSETS 21. HivE=E
2020 2019
(In HK$'000) (LGEETF T AEN) —E-BF ZE-NEF
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company ~ A#TREZEHE A F
Limited
- Guarantee fund deposit - REEEX 100 100
— Admission fee - 2HE 100 100
Statutory deposit with the Stock Exchange B FTAEIR S 200 200 °
Statutory deposit with the SFC BEEFRE - 2,000
Reserve fund contribution to BRITHEEEMBR AR
the Stock Exchange Options Ut
Clearing House Limited 1,500 1,500
Reserve fund contribution to the HKFE ERHEHEBR AR 2 REHESHR
Clearing Corporation Limited 1,500 1,500
3,400 5,400

Annual Report 2020 4E#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

22. INVENTORIES 78
2020 2019
(In HK$°000) (LB F T BE) —E-EF —ZE-NE
Precious metal, stated at EEBUANEIRFENE
net realisable value 18 20
23. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT . BERRYE
o5 2020 2019
(In HK$'000) (LB TF T BEf7) —EBF —E-NEF
Properties held for development, at cost:  #{EZERWE AR NG E
At 15t April and 31t March REA—BER=A=+—H 3,011 3,011
24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH . BITHEBRRAE
2020 2019
(In HK$°000) (LB Fr BE) —Z°%F —E-NF
Cash at bank IRITHEER ;
- General accounts — —&FO 115,268 147,245
Cash in hand Be 3 3
Non-pledged-short-term bank deposits with —f&AEEARRDR3EA R
original maturity less than 3 months 3 E 2 AR S HIR 1T K 271,663 161,117
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEER 386,934 308,365
Cash at bank RITRES A
- Trust accounts —{=FEFE 81,813 50,942
- Segregated accounts - PHRBREFA 1,465 1,820
Pledged short-term bank deposits with —RAEBAKRRDRIEA
original maturity less than 3 months REE 2 B AL BIRITIEH
(Note) (BzE) 10,000 10,000
480,212 Sl12n

Note: Pledged short-term bank deposits carried fixed interest rates at 1%
(2019: 1%) per annum as at 315" March, 2020 and pledged to banks

for securing general bank facilities granted to the Group.

i : EEMBHROTEFIR-_Z_ZF=H
=t BREEFMNE1%:t (ZF— A
Fo1%) UREBRTEAEEETH

—RRITRLE -

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= a

For the year ended 31st March,

OB ® R K

2020 BEZFRETA = b H IR

Included in borrowings are the following amount denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the Group to which
they relate:

25. BORROWINGS . B
2020 2019
(In HK$'000) (BB T T REN) —EEF — N
Borrowings in current portion: MENE D A
— Secured bank borrowing -
interest-bearing — BEMIBITER — A 281,204 -
- Unsecured other borrowing -
interest-bearing — EIRHEMER — 2 2,451 2,769
283,655 2,769
The carrying amounts of the above
borrowings are repayable: A FfESRRBREE
Within one year AR—FNE—E 2,451 2,769
The carrying amounts of the above
borrowings that contain a repayable on
demand clause (shown under current A _EfE SR R EE & 1@ AN
liabilities) but repayable: BENGET GIRRBAE) B
Within one year AR—FREE 21,451 =
Within a period of more than one year
but not exceeding two years AR —F AR ETBEMENEER 22,188 =
Within a period of more than two years
but not exceeding five years ERMELEENBRATANER 70,963 -
For period of more than five years ARAFREE 166,602 =
281,204 -
283,655 2,769
The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to AEBEIZEERMNE (TBERELOFH
contracted interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as R) Z%EIZZDT
follows:
2020 2019
ZEIEHE —TNF
Effective interest rates RERH = 3.16%-3.25% 3.2%

1590045 A2 S 30 B R A5 2 B o
&2 THI%E :

2020 2019
- v —% E 7j1:£'£
US$'000 FEIL US$ 315 US$ 356

Note: As at 31t March 2020, the bank borrowing of approximately
HK$281,204,000 (2019: HKENil) was secured by the Group's
investment properties with carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,434,000,000 (2019: HK$Nil) with related rental proceeds (note
17) and corporate guarantees provided by the Company.

Annual Report 2020 4E#

M R=ZT=FTE=ZA=+—08 4
281,204,000 L (Z T — NG T
) ZBIERAREBZ R ENED
1,434,000,0008 T (ZE—NF: TH
7o) RABBEH & AR (M £ 17) AR A
PR L BRIEER .
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Fia ) =
For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

26. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

AL STATEMENTS

26. FE{SEEIEA LB

2020 2019

(In HK$°000) (LB F T BE) —E-EF —ZE-NE
Amounts due to related parties e AR A T3R8

- Related companies — BERNT 697 1,274

Amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

27. AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of
repayment.

28. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

BANEBALTINAREBER RERE

Bl & o

27. BNRKERRANE

FEABER REREETERY -

28. BNRERENER

2020 2019
(In HK$'000) (WEE T T REN) —E-EF —E-NEF
Amounts payable arising from the ordinary B &2 &5 K HiE
course of business of dealing in securities X ZERFIE
and options:
~ Cash clients - BeEP 95,478 61,527
Amounts payable arising from the ordinary B E %52 BIEANR HEMNFIE
course of business of dealing in futures
contracts:
~ Clients - %P 2,446 2,999
Amounts payable arising from the ordinary BEEBKZREBHFHERE
course of business of provision of JER IR
securities margin financing: i
- Clients’ - &P 1,476 1,840
Amounts payable arising from ordinary HEXB  RUEESBEERNHIE
course of business of dealing in precious
metal 3,835 150
Accruals and other payables FE B PR R ELfth e (- 500 10,103 4,320
Rental and other deposits received HERHEME WiZE 5,604 5,547
Rental received in advance ik 175 173
76,556

The settlement term of cash client payables is two days after the
trade date. Other payables are repayable on demand. The age of
these balances is within 30 days. ;

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (3% # 4 [l

119,117
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30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st March, 2020 #

a8 M B ® KX KB

@R = I = — HLAE

SHARE CAPITAL 29. IR7AK
Number Nominal value
of ordinary of ordinary
shares shares
(In HK$'000) (LGEE T TR E ) EER2EE EBER2EE
Authorised: . EE
As at 1%t April, 2018, 31% March, 2019 RZE—-N\FMA—AB -
and 31t March, 2020 at HK$0.01 each —“NE=A=1t-HEK
— T FE¥=RA=+—H"
BRAE0.01BT 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE
As at 1¢t April, 2018, 31¢t March, 2019 RZZE—N\FELA—QH -
and 31t March, 2020 T NFE=H=1T—H
&_7_7¢ FEqm=E 2,682,316,758 26,824
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 30. REAE ;z?ili
The Group as lessee SEARBEA

The Group leases certain properties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for a term of
one year (2019: one year), which is accounted as short-term lease
under the practical expedient permitted by HKFRS 16.

The Group had no future minimum lease payments in respect of
land and buildings under non-cancellable operating leases at the
end of the reporting period (2019: Nil).

The Group as lessor

The Group leases certain properties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms
ranging from one to twenty (2019: one to twenty) years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future

AEEREBRLHEZHERETYE
REBEHBHREENFIGEMAFNE
BREEFAEHEE BEZNFEHREF
i Aes == Sl e

R|EHR  FERELER A HBELE
HEBRTHLHREEYNARZERE
NR(ZB-NF: &) -

SEEAHAA

K’El*ﬂfﬁ?&% Tzﬁ%fﬁ”?%%
iz%%fﬁﬁiﬂ%? —tH(ZF

—ﬂ¢ Eot4) .

RBEHR  AKERETATHELEH

minimum lease rental receivables under non-cancellable operating ETNZARRZEEWHESIT -
leases as follows: '
2020 2019
(In HK$'000) (LB For /&) —E-BF — N
Within one year —FR 26,750 .31,359
More than one year but within two years BE—FEIRBMER 11,233 25,714
More than two years but within three years BB _FBIR=FR 5,894 8,878
More than three years but within four years BB =FBDROFER 2,838 3,332
More than four years but within five years  BBUFEDRAFR 2,510 2,240
More than five years BBRE 35,698 37,510
84,923 109,033
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &£ _F _FE=H =1+ —H IL4EE

v

31,

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BEREBALIRS
During the year, the Group had the following transactions with its RAFE  AEBBEERRE A T ETN
related parties: 2R :
Name of related party Nature of transactions Notes 2020 2019
BEALER RHMHE B ZEBIEF —E-NE
(In HK$'000) (BTt RED)
UBA Investments Limited (“UBA") Investment management fee (a) 2,075 2,243
HAREAERLA(HAKRE]) . REERE
Performance fee (a) - -
=EME
Securities brokerage commission fee (b) 134 165
BHEEEAE
Handling fee for dividend collection ~  (c). 20 21
BREBKFEE
Margin financing interest (d) 402 57
R E TS :
" Placing fee 5 (e) o . 608
REE
Bullion dealing interest (f) - -

Town Bright Industries Limited

FAEEXARDA

BEeBRHIE

Commodity brokerage commission fee  (g) - -
HEREREER

Bullion commission (h) - -
EcERe

Handling fee for bullion trading (i) - ' -
Storage fee for bullion () = 6 6
ESBHRE

Expenses relating to short-term lease/
rental expenses (k) 676 676
EHEEER /MHeRX

Upbest Properties Company Limited Expenses relating to short-term lease/

XRMWERRAR
Champion Assets Limited
HEARAR

Loong Cheong Limited

EERARRA

rental expenses () 84 84
KEAEER, MeRX

Expenses relating to short-term lease/
rental expenses - (m) 60 60
RHEEER MHeMxX

Expenses relating to short-term lease/
rental expenses (n) 156 156
EHEEER /MHeRX

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &% & _R4E=H =+— H IL4EE

31. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
Notes:

(a)

A subsidiary of the Company, Upbest Assets Management
Limited (“UAML”) as investment manager, and UBA Investments
Limited (“UBA”) have entered into New Investment Management
Agreement dated 25" January, 2019 (“New Investment Management
Agreement”) and agreed that the investment management services
provided by UAML to UBA for a period of three years from 1%
April, 2019 to 31 March, 2022. Pursuant to the New Investment
Management Agreement, monthly investment management fee is
payable by UBA in advance and amounts to 1.5% per annum of
the consolidated net asset value of UBA (“Net Asset Value”) as at
the immediately preceding valuation date on the basis of the actual
number of days in the relevant calendar month over 365 days a year.

In addition to the investment management fee, provided that the Net
Asset Value as at the end of the relevant financial year exceeds the
higher (the “High Watermark”) of:

(i) the Net Asset Value as at the financial year ended 31t March
2019 (“Reference Year”); and :

(i)  the Net Asset Value as at the end of the most recent financial
year after the Reference Year and in which the performance fee
is paid.

UBA will pay UAML the performance fee for the relevant financial
year equal to 20% of the amount by which the Net Asset Value as at
the end of the relevant financial year exceeds the High Watermark.
The annual cap for the investment management fee and performance
fee for each of the financial years ending 31t March, 2020, 2021
and 2022 are HK$8,600,000, HK$9,100,000 and HK$9,600,000
respectively (2019: HK$13,300,000). It is expected that the total of
investment management fee and performance fee will be less than
HK$10,000,000 per annum and all the applicable percentage ratios
(as defined under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules) in respect of the
New Investment Management Agreement are less than 25%. Thus,
transaction contemplated under the New Investment Management
Agreements is considered to be a de-minimis transaction for the
Company pursuant to Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules. There was no
performance fee for the financial years ended 31t March, 2020 and
2019.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

31,

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)

On 25" January, 2019, Upbest Securities Company Limited (“USCL”")
and UBA and four of its subsidiaries have separately entered into
securities brokerage supplemental agreements for the transaction
in relation to the provision of securities brokerage services and
agreed that the original agreements were further extended for a
period of three years to 31t March, 2022. It is expected that the
anual brokerage commission will be less than HK$3,000,000 per
annum (annual cap of 2019: HK$3,000,000) and all the applicable
percentage ratios (as defined under Rule 14.07 of the Listing
Rules) are less than 5%. Thus, transactions contemplated under the
securities brokerage supplemental agreements are considered to
be a de-minims transaction for USCL pursuant to Rule 14A.76 of the
Listing Rules. Brokerage commission fee income was charged at
0.25% (2019: 0.25%), the prevailing market rate, on the value of the
transactions.

Handling fee for dividend collection was charged at minimum of
HK$30 or 0.50% per transaction amount. o

Upbest Investment Company Limited (“UICL") with UBA and two of
it's subsidiaries have separately entered into financial assistance
supplemental agreements dated on 25" January, 2019 in relation to
the provision of securities margin financing services. According to
the financial assistance supplemental agreements, the respective
relevant original agreements were further extended for a period
of three years to 31 March, 2022. The agreements are subject to
renewal by written supplemental agreements between the contracting
parties. The securities margin financing services interest rate was
charged at 4.25% (2019: 4.25%) above prime rate per annum
inclusive of custodian fee; and the provision of IPO financing at an
interest rate ranged from 0.20% to 1.50% (2019: 0.20% to 1.50%) per
annum above the borrowing costs of UICL. Interest income for the
securities margin accounts was charged at 9.5% (2019: 9.5%) per
annum. No IPO financing interest paid for the financial years ended
31t March, 2020 and 2019.

On 12" December, 2018, USCL and UBA entered into a placing
agreement pursuant to which UBA conditionally agreed to place
through USCL, on a best effort basis, up to 211,955,640 placing
shares at the placing price of HK$0.082 per placing share. The
placing shares were allotted and issued pursuant to the general
mandate granted to the directors of UBA at the annual general
meeting of UBA held on 17" August, 2018. USCL charged UBA a
placing commission equivalent to 3.5% of the placing price in respect
of such number of placing shares successfully placed by USCL
plus any other out-of-pocket charges and expenses by the USCL in
relation to the placing. The completion of the placing took place on
4" January, 2019.

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )
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BRENBEBALRS (F)
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(b)
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &% & _R4E=H =+— H IL4EE

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(f)

A subsidiary of the Company, Upbest Gold and Silver Trading Limited
("UGS”) entered into a precious metal supplemental agreement with
UBA Gold Investment Limited (“UBA Gold”) in relation to the provision
of precious metals margin financing service for a period of three
years to 31t March, 2022 by UGS to UBA Gold. The agreement is
subject to renewal by- written supplemental agreement between the
contracting parties.

The interest rate for the precious metals financing service was ranged
from 0.25% to 0.50% (2019: 0.25% to 0.50%) per annum above the
borrowing costs of UGS for call position. In respect of put position,
the interest rate was charged at the range of 0.25% to 0.50% (2019:
0.25% to 0.50%) per annum on top of the borrowing cost of UGS
(if any) provided that if UGS would receive any interest from its
supplier(s), UBA Gold may set off such financing fee against the
interest received by UGS from its supplier(s). For avoidance of doubt,
any remaining interest received by UGS from its supplier(s) after such
set-offs in respect of such put position will be paid to UBA Gold.

No interest has been charged for the period.

The annual cap regarding the securities and precious metals margin
financial assistance (as disclosed in note (d) and note (f)) for each
of the financial years ending 31% March, 2020, 2021 and 2022 is
HK$64,000,000 (2019: HK$60,000,000).

Commodities brokerage commission was charged at a range from
HK$20 to HK$100 (2019: HK$20 to HK$100) per transaction. No
commission has been charged for the period.

Precious metals commission was charged at a range from US$10 to
US$50 (2019: US$10 to US$50) per transaction. No commission has
been charged for the period.

Handling fee for precious metals trading was charged at 0.25%
(2019: 0.25%) per transaction amount. No handling fee has been
charged for the period.

Storage fee for precious metals trading was charged at US$2 (2019:
US$2) per day.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

31,

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(k)

(0)

Two subsidiaries of the Company have respectively entered into
tenancy agreements with Town Bright Industries Limited for one year,
commencing from 1t April, 2019. On 1st*April, 2020, the tenancy
agreements were renewed for one year to 31t March, 2021. (Note)

A subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement
with Upbest Properties Company Limited for one year, commencing
from 1t April, 2019. On 1%t April, 2020, the tenancy agreement was
renewed for one year to 31t March, 2021. (Note)

A subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement with
Champion Assets Limited for one year, commencing from 1%t April,
2019. On 1t April, 2020, the tenancy agreement was renewed for one
year to 31¢ March, 2021. (Note)

A subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement-with
Loong Cheong Limited for one year, commencing from 1%t April, 2019.
On 15t April, 2020, the tenancy agreement was renewed for one year
to 31¢ March, 2021. (Note) s

Note:

As at 31t March, 2020, CCAA Group Limited (“CCAA”) holds
approximately 74.29% interest in Upbest Group Limited (“Upbest”).
Fung Fai Growth Limited (“Fung Fai”) holds approximately 26.74% of
UBA. The ultimate beneficial owner of CCAA and Fung Fai is Cheng's
Family: Trust. Interested beneficiaries of the Cheng’'s Family Trust
include Mr. CHENG Kai Ming, Charles, Ms. CHENG Wai Ling, Annie
(“Ms. Cheng”) and Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew (“Mr. Cheng”).
Ms. Cheng and Mr. Cheng are directors of Upbest. Mr. Cheng is also
a director of UBA. Moreover, UAML, the investment manager of UBA,
is regarded as a connected person of UBA under Rule 14A.08 of the
Listing Rules.

Mr. CHENG Kai Ming, Charles, the father of Ms. Cheng and
Mr. Cheng, has beneficial interests in Town Bright Industries Limited,
Upbest Properties Company Limited, Champion Assets Limited and
Loong Cheong Limited.

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year are disclosed in note 12.

The above transactions were carried out in the normal course
of the Group’s business on terms mutually agreed between the
parties.

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &% & _R4E=H =+— H IL4EE

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. HAER
2020 2019

(In HK$'000) (LB F T BEN) —E-EE —T-NEF
Guarantees given by the Company and its - AR B REWNB AR ABLE=F

subsidiaries to financial institutions in BT BHEERNIGEE

respect of facilities granted to

independent third parties 3,000 3,000
Guarantees given by the Company to AARRENBARSLTHH

financial institutions in respect of BEERUDEEE

facilities granted to subsidiaries 452,000 452,000

At the end of the reporting period, the directors do not consider it
is probable that a claim will be made against the Group under any
of the guarantees.

Of the above guarantees, the amount utilised by the subsidiaries
at _31“ March, 2020 is approximately HK$281,204,000 (2019: HK$
Nil).

The Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect of

these guarantees as its fair value cannot be reliably measured and
its transaction price was HK$Nil (2019: HK$Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 B E _F - RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 33. AQAMHBAMR K
L 2020 2019
(In HK$°000) (BB F T BE(T) —ZT-TF —E-NE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN £ 229,591 356,215
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Dividend receivable R A% 2 - 50,000
Prepayments and other receivable T RUE R E A R IR 89 4
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRIRE 153,137 137
153,226 50,141
CURRENT LIABILITIES pEIR=RET -
Accrued expenses ANE-¢:3 389 391
Provision for taxation iR 4,386 7,999
4,775 8,390
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEEE 148,451 41,751
NET ASSETS BERE 378,042 397,966
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARK f#E -
Share capital B ' 26,824 26,824
Reserves (Note) e (fIsE) 324,395 317,496
Proposed dividend KRR E 26,823 53,646
378,042 397,966
The statement of financial position of the Company was approved ARG BIRANREEESe RN 2=
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24" June, SENA-TNASERREZERAT
2020. FIEERREE -
Cheng Wai Lun, Andrew Cheng-Wai Ling, Annie
12 R
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEFE - HITEE
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For the year ended 31st March,

33. ADANHBRREK (F)

(Continued)
Note: reserves of the company B AREIRFR
Share Contributed Retained
premium surplus profits Total

(In HK$'000) (U EETTAED) RRE BB RE R @t
As at 15t April, 2018 R-Z—-\EWA—H 300,959 8,515 18,350 327,824
Profit for the year FREM - - 43,318 43,318
Other comprehensive income for AEFHM2ENE

the year = = = =
Total comprehensive income for AEEEENEER

the year - - 43,318 43,318
Proposed final dividend (Note 15) B AR HAR 2 (B EE15) il v (63,646) (53,646)
As at 31 March, 2019 RZZE-NF=A=+—H 300,959 8,515 8,022 317,496
Profit for the year FR%H - = 33,722 33,722
Other comprehensive income for AFEEHMEEWE

the year = = = =
Total comprehensive income for FEETHRGRE

the year - - 33,722 33,722
Proposed final dividend (Note 15) BORR AR 2 (fi315) - - (26,823) (26,823)
As at 315t March, 2020 RZZE-ZEF=A=1—H 300,959 8,515 14,921 324,395
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 34, MEFHFELAEIHE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details chan
from financing activities,

changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified as
cash flows from financing activities in the Group’s consolidated

statement of cash flows.

including both cash and non-cash & -

TRALAEEREEINELRBECE
BRASLFRED - mﬁéﬁééﬂﬁﬁ
EXEBEERERECHIRKERRER
RASEGERRATRERADER/RER
@]ﬁﬁmuiZﬁ% %

ges in the Group’s liabilities arising

Bank Dividend Interest
borrowing * payable payable Total
(In HK$°000) (W BB FTREN) RITE N A% B & A 7118, 5
At 15t April, 2018 RZE-N\FmA—A = = A S
Financing cash flows BERERE - (103,764) - (103,764)
Dividend approved BHERE T 103,764 - = 103,764
At 318t March, 2019 and =R = s S B S ae—E
1t April, 2019 CE-NFEMA—H - = = =
Financing cash flows net EREEERE 281,204 (53,646) (9,206) 218,352
Finance cost BB KA = = 9,206 9,206
Dividend approved B R & - 53,646 = 53,646
At 31t March, 2020 R-ZE-EF=H=+—H 281,204 - = 281,204
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

35. SUBSIDIARIES 35. fIBLF

Details of.the:Company’s subsidiaries at 31t March, 2020 are as NRZE-_ZBEE=A=+—H KAAREH

follows: ATHBAR :
" Principal Issued and fully
Place of place of  Percentage of interest paid ordinary
Name of subsidiary incorporation operation  attributable to the Group  Principal activites - share capital
| BRAR
WEAFRHE aMEuhE FEEXHE SEEREAN IZEE  HREBRRA

' 2020 2019
A L
Upbest Financial Holdings Limited ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 100% 100% Investment holding US$1
EEERREE B REER (E
Upbest Land Company Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 100% '1_00% Investment holding US$1
EEERARES 0 REER (E
) Citybest Management Limited British Virgjin Islands Macau ~ 100% 100% Investment holding US$1
EEERARES R ; REER (e
Companhia De Desenvolvimento E Macau Macau 100% 100%  Property investment MOP25,000
Fomento Predial Si Wan Limitada -

REEXERARATA - - J§ BHERE 25,0008
Gold-Face Finance Limited Hong Kong ~ Hong Kong 100% 100% Money lending HK$28,000,004
HRUBERAT &b Bh BSEE 28,000,004
Good Foundation Company Limited Hong Kong  Hong Kong 100% 100% Investment holding HK$10,000
FRBRAT ; & BB RERR 10,0008 7
Good. Profit Development Limited Samoa  Hong Kong 100% 100% Investment holding US$1
N ERERAR BESD BB REAR (E
Great Luck Consultants Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 100% 100% Inactive US$50,000
REEMERAA EBARRES &h IREEY 50,000% 7
King Standard International Limited British. Virgin Islands Macau 100% 100% Proberty holding US$1
EBARRES P hEER (E
Marco Tech Limited British Virgin Islands Hc;ng Kong. 100% 100% Investment holding US$2
RBERREE Bk REAR 2ETT

156 ' UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <sip @\
£ A M B B E K Bl
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. BT (&)
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 315 March, 2020 are as RZEZEF=A=+—H KA aEF
follows: (Continued) ATHBRR : (&)
. Principal Issued and fully
: Place of place of  Percentage of interest paid ordinary
Name of subsidiary . incorporation operation  attributable to the Group  Principal activities - share capital
BRTR
WEAREH : AR FEEXLY EEBRESN TEXH  AREBRERE
2020 2019
i A AP i
Mei Tou Real Estate Company Macau Macau 100% 100%  Property investment MOP25,000
Limited
ZEEXERAA il 2P FHERE 25,0002 7
Mei Wo Company Limited Macau Macau 100% 100% Proper'ty investment MOP25,000
ZNERRA 2r AP BHERE 25,0002 7
Perfect Result Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands Hong Kong 100% 100% Investment holding US$1
RERBARDA EBEARRES &b REBR Ey
Profit Up Development Limited Hong'Kong  Hong Kong 70% 70%  Project and property HK$10
management
BRERARLA &b B BERMEER 10T
Upbest Assets Management Hong Kong ~ Hong Kong 100% 100%  Assets management ° HK$600,000
Limited
FREBARAT &k & EEER 600,000% 7
Upbest Bullion Company Limited Hong Kong 'Hong Kong 100% 100% Precious metal dealing HK$11,000,000
FREEERAT & &B ESBEE  11,000,00087
Upbest Commodities Company Hong Kong  Hong Kong 100% iOO% Futures dealing HK$10,000,000
Limited ' :
XEPRBERAR A &k HEBEE  10,000,000% T
Upbest Credit and Mortgage Hong Kong ~ Hong Kong 100% 100% " Inactive HK$2
Limited
FREEREBERRA &b &b EREEY 2B
Upbest Cyber Trade Company Hong Kong  Hong Kong 100% 100% Inactive HK$2
Limited

XRETHARRAR BE . 'R ERERY 2T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 & E ~F “RFE=H=+—HIL4EE

35. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Details of.the:Company’s subsidiaries at 31t March, 2020 are as
follows: (Continued)

35. BT (&)
RZE-TF=A=+—H0 ' ~AFFE
IATIB AT : ()

UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )

" Principal Issued and fully
Place of place of  Percentage of interest paid ordinary
Name of subsidiary incorporation operation  attributable to the Group  Principal activities share capital
BRITR
(NGRS AfKUbE FEEEME SEEREMNL TEXR  AREERERA
2020 2019
ZRCEE ZE-NF
Upbest Hong Kong Land British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 100% 100% Investment holding US$1
Company. Limited |
AEERARES &b REFER _ (E
Upbest Investment Company Hong Kong  Hong Kong 100% 100% Securities margin HK$40,000,000
Limited financing -
J ZRREARAA B B > EHARBE  40,000,000% 7T
Upbest Macau Land Company British Virgin Islands  Hong Kong 100% 100% Investment holding US$1
Limited
FRAMEXARAR EBARRES &b REER (E
Upbest Online Securities Limited Hong Kong ~ Hong Kong 100% 100% Inactive HK$5,000,000
ERALESBRAT & &k EREED 5,000,000/ ¢
Upbest Strategic Company Limited Hong Kong ~ Hong Kong 100% 100% Investment holding HK$5,002
FRERARAA i &b REHR 5,002/ T
Upbest Securities Company Limited Hong Kong  Hong Kong 100% 100% Securities dealing HK$10,000,000
and broking
FRESAERAA & &b EHFXHREL  10,000,000% T
Peals International Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 100% 100% Investment holding US$1
YHERER AR EERARES BB REHR (E
Maiyon Investment Company Hong Kong  Hong Kong 100% 100% Inactive HK$35,000
Limited
ERERRAA & B LREEY 35,0007
Peace Gain Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 55% 55% Investment holding US$1.00
RERARES B REER 100£ 7T
Christian Faith Limited Hong Kong  Hong-Kong 55% 55%  Property investment HK$1
&b ) FHERE 187
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31st March, 2020 &% & _R4E=H =+— H IL4EE

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31t March, 2020 are as
follows: (Continued)

35.

MDA (&)
R-ZZEZZF=A=+—B KXRAKA
ATHBRRE : (&)

. Principal Issued and fully
: Place of place of  Percentage of interest paid ordinary
Name of subsidiary incorporation operation  attributable to the Group  Principal activities - share capital
BRTR
WEAREH AR FEEXLY EEBRESN TEXH  AREBRERE
2020 2019
i A AP i
Bible Workshop Limited Hong Kong  Hong Kong 55% 55% Inactive HK$1
&b 2 EHREEY BT
Upbest Gold & Silver Trading Hong Kong ~ Hong Kong 100% 100% Precious metal dealing HK$10,000
Limited :
ZReREHERATA &b &b BESEEE 10,000/ 7
Mega Benefit International Limited  British Virgin Islands Hong Kong 100% 100% Inactive US$1
EBABRES &b IREEY Ey

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital outstanding at the
end of the reporting period or at any time during the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As a result of the outbreak of COVID-19, the globe has taken
numerous measures including travel and transportation
restrictions to prevent the spread of the epidemic. Such measures
have extensively disrupted most of the normal operation and
businesses. While the Group’s major businesses are mainly
located in Hong Kong and Macau, the businesses would be
affected by the global economy and property market in the
mentioned jurisdictions. Save as disclosed, the directors of
the Company are not aware of any significant events affecting
the Group after the reporting period and up to the date of this
announcement. However, given the unpredictable nature and

rapid development relating to COVID-19, the Group’s operating

environment would be increasingly challenged when the epidemic
continues. The board of directors will continue to assess the
impact of the outbreak of the epidemic on the Group’s operation
and financial performance in this regard.

APPROVAL AND AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ]

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24" June, 2020.

Annual Report 2020 4E#
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SCHEDULE OF PROPERTIES

W % M ik
(1) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AS AT 31" MARCH, 2020 (1) RZEZBE=FA=1+—HzZREW*
Approximate Percentage of the
Description Usage gross floor area Status  Group’s interest
MEFI ’ Bz BHRELEE R KEBFTE
BREAL
(square feet)
(FER) - %
(a) Macau Commercial 105,000 Rental 100
P _ HA HR
51 Various car parking spaces and
the'whole of the ground floor and
1st Floor of Chino Plaza, located
in Baia Sul Do Bairro Fai Chi Kei,
Lote PS2 Macau
R RPIAE T 2 EPS2HE 2 :
ENES  BES1EEN -
WTER—E2E
J (b) Macau Residential/ > 11,492 Rental : 100
B Commercial : nfié|
*=/HA
1 piece of land at '
Nossa Senhora Do Camo,
Taipa, Macau with
a two-story restaurant
URNRM G EEZR
Wz —feti E
BE-EMERAEEEZREY
(2) PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT AS ) 2 RZBE-EBEE=F=1+-—HZEERE
AT 315" MARCH, 2020 ES
Percentage
of the Estimated
Approximate Group’s completion Stage of
Description Usage site area interest date development
EE 3 Jiikes BROEE X&E st BRER
BERE |, Ptz SR A
BAt
(square feet)
(FAR) %
(a) Hong Kong Government, 9,147 55 N/A~ Vacant land
% Institution or TER EETH
Community
2 pieces of land at BT #RESHE
Tseung Kwan O
Declaimation

District Number 248
MIRALA B S & B R248[R £ i

160 ' UPBEST GROUP LIMITED (X #&4£MA WA )
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 UPBEST GROUP LIMITED
A A R A )

2nd Floor, Wah Kit Commercial Centre
-+ 300 Des Voeux Road Central y

"Hong Kong :

Tel’ 852 2545 3298
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